Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


New Business #15-a

Minutes
Fayette County / City of Fayetteville Called Meeting
Fayette County Commission Chambers
140 Stonewall Avenue West, Suite 100
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214
April 9, 2014
6:00 p.m.

Fayette County Commissioners Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow

Fayette County Commissioners Absent: Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio

Fayetteville City Council Greg Clifton, Mayor
Mickey Edwards
Ed Johnson
Paul Oddo, Jr.
Jim Williams
Scott Stacey

County and City Staff Steve Rapson, Fayette County Administrator
Joe Morton, Fayetteville City Manager
Floyd Jones, Fayette County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Fayette County Deputy Clerk

1. Call to Order — Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown

Fayette County Commissioner Chairman called the April 9, 2014 Joint Meeting of the Fayette Commission
Board of Commissioners and the City of Fayetteville City Council to order at 6:03 p.m.

2. Discussion concerning Fayette County’s Fire Consolidation Proposal

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown gave opening comments on Fayette County’s Fire
Consolidation Proposal and how both the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County has worked in the past in
order to bring Pinewood Studios to Fayette County.

Fayette County Administrator Steve Rapson provided the joint elected officials and the audience with a
PowerPoint presentation on Fayette County’s Fire Consolidation Proposal. A copy of the PowerPoint
presentation, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown stated that reallocating the existing resources more
efficiently is one of the benefits of the proposed consolidation since consolidation provides a service delivery
model that is more efficient to fire operations. He said the consolidation format would eliminate issues
concerning automatic aid and future annexations with no decrease in existing service deliveries. He
explained that the boundaries for the City of Fayetteville are not stable, and as the city pushes out through
annexation then the County has to pull back its services. He said the proposed consolidation, as presented
is balanced, requiring using the existing fire tax rate with no fire tax rate increase either proposed or



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #15-a





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 2

warranted. Chairman Brown said Fayetteville residents would not pay more for the consolidation than they
do currently for fire services. He explained that the County’s fire tax is a separate, distinct tax that shows up
individually on the tax bill in addition to other city and county taxes. He said the proposed consolidation
would retain all the full-time City of Fayetteville fire staff at a better pay rate than their existing salaries, while
leaving all the fire stations operational. He said all fire staff would become Advanced Life Support (ALS)
rated under the proposed consolidation. Chairman Brown said Fayette County would expedite building the
Veteran’s Parkway Fire Station saying the building process would begin in 2015 and it becoming operational
the following year. He stated that the unincorporated County’s Insurance Service Organization (ISO) ratings
would be enhanced, and that consolidation would help the County in aiding with its economic development
capacity. He said consolidation would provide a Fayette County homestead exemption for qualified City of
Fayetteville residents. He said the long-term approach showed that in 2018, the City of Fayetteville’s fund
balance is projected to be depleted; although the economy does fluctuate.

County Administrator Steve Rapson added that the proposed consolidation would allow for qualified City of
Fayetteville residents to apply for homestead exemptions; meaning money would be returning indirectly
back to the City of Fayetteville.

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown and Fayette County Administrator Steve Rapson
provided additional comments. Chairman Brown then opened the floor for public comments.

Steven Woodworth: Mr. Woodworth, an Assistant Chief of the Atlanta Fire Department, who resides in
Brooks, spoke for approximately 26 minutes. He said he was concerned about misinformation that had
been provided on this subject. He then spoke about the Insurance Services Organization (ISO) ratings
saying the City of Fayetteville has an ISO rating of Class 4 and Fayette County has an ISO rating of Class
4/8B, while explain some of the criteria used to make the ratings calculations. He spoke about the
differences in the ratings, reasons for the different ratings, and his concerns with the ratings and
consolidation. He asked why the County Commissioners were taking on the City of Fayetteville’s fire
problem when the County has not fixed his fire problem. He said the Commissioners were elected to serve
him, not the City of Fayetteville, and that he has been asking to have his fire protection problem fixed. He
also asked why the County was buying golf courses when he has a fire protection problem since fire
protection is a higher priority. He suggested the County should have invested $1.3 million in fixing fire
protection in Fayette County before it bought a golf course.  Commissioner Brown responded to some of
the issues Mr. Woodward spoke about. He told the Fayetteville City Council that its Fire Department is
operating at a higher level than the County’s Fire Department. He stated that diluting a diluted system will
only dilute it more. He said the papers were reporting that consolidation would enhance and improve ISO
scores, but he told the elected members that there would not be an improvement of the scores. He stated
that in over his 32 years of experience with nine separate fire departments, including both the City of
Fayetteville’s Fire Department and the Fayette County Fire Department, that that city’s fire department is the
most fiscally minded, well managed and well led department he has ever been a part of. He attributed its
success to the City of Fayetteville’s Fire Department's leadership.

County Commissioner Chairman Steve Brown stated that there was a problem with the water pressure in
Brooks, and that the Water Committee was talking about that very issue seeking to bring appropriate water
capacity to the area for the hydrants. Chairman Brown also stated that the golf course was purchased with
Special Purpose Local Option Tax (SPLOST) funds that are set aside for road projects due to the 2004
SPLOST. He said the project was the number one transportation project in the county with unanimous
jurisdictional support. He said the money could not be used for fire protection, so there was not choice in
how the money was spent between either fire protection or constructing a road for future use.

Larry Dell: Mr. Dell spoke for approximately 21 minutes. He reminded Commissioner Brown that one
Commission Board cannot bind another Commission Board. He then spoke to the individual city council
members, beginning with Mayor Greg Clifton, asking if they were in a private meeting with members or a
member of the County Commission that was not published. Each council member replied that they had met





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 3

in private meetings with members of the County Commission. It was pointed out that there was no quorum
so that the meetings did not have to be advertised or published to the local media, and that the meetings
took place in a public restaurant. Mr. Dell asked if fire consolidation was such a great deal, while did the
elected members have to meet in private. Mr. Dell also asked if the city council members were able to carry
a copy of the proposal home for further study if it was such a great proposal. He then asked each city
council member if they saw an advantage to consolidation. The city council members responded to each of
Mr. Dell's questions. Mayor Clifton said a couple of years ago Pinewood Studios was not in Fayette County
or in Fayetteville, and the needed growth to stand up a new fire station at Pinewood would deplete the city’s
fund balance causing the city to raise taxes. Mayor Clifton added that it was telling to him that only two
percent of the calls made to the City of Fayetteville’s Fire Department involved fire, and this consolidation
would grade the employees with Advanced Life Support. Mr. Dell asked, if someone looked at Fayetteville’s
financial figures, how $1 million for fire impact fees was missed, even after the fire fund was paid off. He
also stated that $300,000.00 in grant money was also “missed” in the financial calculations.

Fayette County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that no one overlooked the $1 million and it was
understood that there was $1 million from impact fees. He said that $1 million would be added to build the
Veterans Parkway Fire Station, and the County did not count any of the fire grants that it has because the
Impact Fee money is treated just like a capital fund and the Vehicle and Equipment Fund meaning not all
funds are reflected in the PowerPoint presentation material. He explained that the provided material
showed operational dollars, but that no other funds were missed.

Mr. Dell spoke about how the City of Fayetteville has historically spent its money very well and very
prudently, and he asked how the city council could believe the information provided to them about the city
going broke without doing their own individual research. Mr. Dell stated that it was true that Pinewood
Studios was not in Fayette County two years ago, but it was unknown how much revenue it and the ancillary
businesses would bring to the county. Mr. Dell also questioned a statement saying the county’s fire
departments had to work around the city’s jurisdictional borders; creating the need for consolidation. He
said he had not seen a toll booth or gate for people entering the City of Fayetteville. Mr. Dell reported that
the city has reduced staffing due to the lagging economy, that the City of Fayetteville has outstanding staff
and an outstanding Fire Department, and that they know what they are doing. He said when he was in the
military most of the medics were not paramedics, but they would “save your butt” since they were trained in
basic medical practices. He said the guys on the fire trucks do a great job, are able to do a quick
assessment, and may even stop a medical transport. Mr. Dell was in opposition to the proposed fire
consolidation.

Jessica Leonard: Ms. Jessica Leonard of the Fayette County Fire Department reminded everyone that the
county runs all the calls with the city. She said one jurisdiction could not do without the other, and that they
already work together.

Al Hovey-King: Mr. Hovey-King spoke for approximately 19 minutes. He said he was able to find the
same information that Mr. Woodward found on the internet, and that he has an issue with the proposed
staffing. He spoke about the County’s Insurance Services Organization (ISO) rating. He also spoke about
the number of calls that the city made into the county as well as the average county to city calls, saying the
city went into the county more often than the county came into the city. He spoke about how the millage
rates are paid for the services provided to the City of Fayetteville. He suggested that the citizens of
Fayetteville would have a higher tax burden without improvement to their services. Mr. Hovey-King stated
that there has been virtually no public information presented on this matter, and virtually no one knew about
this matter coming up. He stated if the city council were to approve the consolidation then it would be doing
a disservice to the citizens of Fayetteville.





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 4

Betty McKibben: Ms. McKibben said the figures and recent conversation had blown her mind. She said
that after hearing the concerns and figures, it should be evident that the people are concerned about the
City of Fayetteville. She said the issue was about an individual department with individuals working in it,
and that the individuals have heavy burdens. She asked what would happen to the years of service for the
Fayetteville firefighters who would become a part of the Fayette County Fire Department.

County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that if an employee was currently enrolled in the Defined
Benefits Plan with three years vested, that same vesting would roll over into the County’s retirement plan.
Additionally, he said whatever seniority a City of Fayetteville employee had would carry over to the County.
He stated that the employee would be placed on the same vacation and sick leave time as well, with
accruals matching county employees.

Ms. McKibben addressed the City of Fayetteville’s Council, saying she wanted the council to assure the
citizens that it supports the city, its citizens, and its employees. She asked the council to vote no to the
consolidation, saying the members of the Fayetteville Fire Department represent many years of service, that
they have families, that they lay their lives on the line. She asked the council to consider the members and
all their work, and to keep the Fayetteville Fire Department. She suggested that the city council would be
making a life changing decision. She asked the city council not to succumb to the political pressure being
applied to it by the county government, and to vote against consolidation. She asked if the county would
then go after the City of Fayetteville’s Police Department and even other departments from other
jurisdictions.

Ken Holland: Mr. Holland said he was concerned that the county was planning to take over the city, and he
asked how the county was planning to pay for all of the extra employees. He also asked if the city’s funding
would come with the consolidation to the county. He pointed out that a Commissioner’s house burned down
recently, and he spoke about a fire that he experienced where the County responded with two firefighters.

County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that this proposed Fire Consolidation effort was being done at
the request of the City of Fayetteville’s mayor and council. He said the City of Fayetteville’s Fire
Department employees would be brought over to the County at the County’s pay scale so that the
employees would not be harmed. He said the money would come from the City of Fayetteville’s $2.1 million
digest; similar to how EMS and E-911 works throughout the county. He said the proposal assumes that the
3.07 Fire Millage Rate the County could bring the firefighters over with County salaries while negating
shortfalls. He said that, in theory, a citizen of City of Fayetteville would see a line item on their bill for the
County at 3.07 millage rates with a corresponding reduction in the millage rate of 3.07 for the City of
Fayetteville. He stated that the consolidation would not cost the citizens of Fayetteville any extra money.

Ms. Wilbanks: Ms. Wilbanks, from the Lakemont subdivision, said everybody had just gone through the
school board fiasco where schools were closed, children and parents were uprooted, and then, suddenly,
money was found. She said the teachers were paid, but not one school was reopened. She stated that
when the city gets rid of its fire department, it will never get the fire department back.

Ken Steele: Mr. Steele stated that Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville both have outstanding fire
departments. He was surprised to hear that the mayor and city council asked for the consolidation proposal,
and he said the city council was shortchanging its citizens. He spoke about the quality and good work of the
city fire department. Mr. Steele said innocence, like the fire department, once surrendered, is never
recovered. He could not understand why the city council would get rid of the fire department; especially
since maintaining a fire department is one of the ten criteria needed to be and remain a city. He said no one
had expressed a problem or concern that can only be solved by consolidation. He said he opposed
consolidation saying short-term solutions do not cure long-term challenges. He suggested that the two new
members on the city council were not qualified to make a decision on the matter due to their lack of
experience. He clarified that he was not trying to be divisive in his statement, and he wished them well.





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 5

Michael Green: Mr. Green, a City of Fayetteville firefighter, said he had a lot of questions that needed to be
answered. He told the city council that he was the person they were affecting with their decision, and that
he would be taking a $2,400.00 pay cut with Fayette County if consolidation was approved. Fayette County
Commissioner Chairman Steve Brown encouraged the City of Fayetteville’s firefighters to meet with the
County Administrator and the County’s Human Resources Director concerning their proposed positions and
pay in the County.

Ken Steele: Mr. Steele returned to the podium saying city residents pay 3.07 mils for fire services and that
he was told that if the consolidation was approved that the city would reduce the 3.07 mils for those fire
services so there is not a tax increase for city residents. He said he had not heard a city council member tell
about that statement, and he asked the city council if they were committing to a reduction of the millage rate
in the amount of 3.07 mils. A council member replied that he had not thought that far ahead, and Mr. Steele
asked if he thought that should be thought about.

Fayette County Commission Chairman Brown stated that the City of Fayetteville had to face economic
reality, as reflected with its part-time staffing.

Chris Stanley: Mr. Stanley, a firefighter for Lamar and Pike Counties, and whose family lives and has
worked for both the city’s and county’s fire departments, asked Fayette County Administrator Steve Rapson
if, in his capacity in other cities, had this consolidation issue arisen. He also asked if other jurisdictions were
similarly talking about consolidation. He said his father, a resident of Fayette County, was concerned about
taxes since he has property in both the city and the county. He also asked about the numbers of time calls
were issued from both the city and the county. Mr. Stanley said he and his father were concerned that the
city would annex more land, but would be subject to the county’s financial needs. Mr. Stanley also asked if
the county had approached the City of Peachtree City in order to consolidate its fire department as well.

Josh Collins: Mr. Josh Collins, a City of Fayetteville firefighter, said he saw his proposed raise of $500.00
if the consolidation goes through, and he asked about his pension and retirement with the County. He also
asked about the County’s healthcare benefits. He also asked why the City of Fayetteville’s command staff
was being downgraded to a lesser level due to the consolidation. He asked what benefit the city firefighters
would have should the proposed consolidation be approved. He said the city and county already works well
together, and he asked what the problem was with the current situation. Mr. Collins said he did not know
why this was a big issue and why the firefighters were not valued anymore by the city. He spoke about the
financial sacrifices the firefighters have taken over the years, and he asked the city council to allow them to
keep working for the city.

Carl Scottman: Mr. Scottman pointed out that the city council has not spoken much, that it has allowed the
county to be out front and speak on this matter, and that the information was all one-sided. He asked the
new council members to get with the system and figure out why this was going to a countywide operation
with minimal information from the city council. He asked the city council to put this matter to a public
referendum for the citizens of the city and county to vote on the matter. He suggested that City Hall would
be full when the vote occurs, and that there was the potential for recall efforts to take place should the vote
go through without public input. He said the County’s fire service has grown and done a great growth
model, but that it was not ready for “takeover mode” despite the political entities that were looking for
consolidation. He said everyone who felt the City of Fayetteville could not afford a fire department should
be ashamed.

Bobby Hayden: Mr. Hayden, a City of Fayetteville firefighter, said he had worked for both the city and the
county. He said he worked with Fayette County for 23 years, but through a series of events he went to work
for the City of Fayetteville Fire Department. He spoke about both the unity and distinctiveness of the city’s
and county’s firefighters. He said the consolidation was a wash, and that it would save the city $350,000.00.
He said if saving $350,000.00 was the issue that he would gladly give up whatever it took. He said that
County Administrator Steve Rapson, Commission Chairman Steve Brown, and the other County





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 6

Commissioners have spoken to the city firefighters, but that he had not even had the opportunity to meet
with a city councilmember. He suggested that the firefighters’ input was important. He also asked, if the
consolidation deal was so good, why not turn the consolidation around and give the control to the City of
Fayetteville. He reiterated that these decisions were affecting a lot of people. He said the county’s
firefighters were good people, and so were the city’s firefighters. He questioned the fairness of how the city
and county employees would be affected. He thought it was not fair for Chief Jones to “come down.” He
thought this was a big hit for anyone to get rid of the fire department. He said when the city gives up its fire
department and the county raises the taxes, the citizens of Fayetteville will not have any say in the matter.
He repeated that he has talked to the County Administrator more than the city councilmembers, and that
was disheartening.

Keith Harris: Mr. Harris, a Captain with the City of Fayetteville Fire Department, spoke about having two
families, his home family and his Fayetteville Fire Department family. He said he would receive a $200.00
raise if the proposed consolidation is approved, but that he would actually lose over $400.00 per month. He
said he was looking to retire, and this consolidation would hit his retirement hard. He said the consolidation
would cause a loss of income, putting financial stress on him at a time when his child was preparing for
college. He also asked where his time of service would go if the consolidation was approved. He asked the
elected officials to take these considerations seriously since he has two families and loves them all. County
Administrator Steve Rapson responded to Captain Harris’ concerns.

Jimmy Jones: Mr. Jones said he could appreciate what the firefighters were going through. He also
suggested that the County Commissioners should be let off the hook since it seemed the Fayetteville City
Council was the entity throwing the citizens under the bus. He was strongly concerned that the city
approached the county on this matter. He said the councilmembers could be voted out of office, and he
asked them to vote no on this matter.

Sean Vansis: (Note: audio recording did not clearly capture the speaker’s last name). The speaker, a City
of Fayetteville firefighter, said there were other questions that needed to be answered. He spoke about the
numbers of hours he works, and the strain he and his family are going through. He said he would gladly
work for anyone, but he asked the city council to provide the people with more time to get answers on this
matter. County Administrator Steve Rapson and Fayette County Fire Chief David Scarbrough addressed
the concerns that were expressed. The speaker thanked Mr. Rapson and Chief Scarbrough for answering
his questions and stated that he wished he could get the same amount of time to speak with his city council.

Melina Collins: Mrs. Collins, the wife of a City of Fayetteville firefighter, said the answer to the budgetary
questions that was asked earlier caused her to urge everyone to consider why this initiative was voted down
in the past. She said she wanted to know how many other options have been put on the table to keep the
city out of the red. Chairman Brown said that the options are what is currently had and the proposal, and he
spoke about the financial difficulties that the city is facing. Mrs. Collins asked the elected officials to not be
hasty in their decision in considering only one option.

Brenda Stevens: Ms. Stevens asked why this matter could not be brought before the citizens of the City of
Fayetteville and the Fayette County citizens. Chairman Brown responded to Ms. Steven’s questions.

Sandra Parker-Barnes: Mrs. Parker-Barnes said she knew the city firefighters and that they are great
people. She wished that the City of Peachtree City’s Fire Department had the City of Fayetteville’s
performance. She stated that the City of Peachtree City’s Fire Department had not reached the same
achievement that the City of Fayetteville’s Fire Department has achieved.

Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner suggested that fire services could drive down Lester Road, since it is almost
like a four-lane highway, if they needed a way to get through Fayetteville. He said he came to the meeting
leaning toward approving the consolidation, but that he was given reason to reconsider his position. He said
he had not heard about the percentage of costs, and he asked where the costs would come from. He said





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 7

he did not know what the people of Fayetteville were worried about since in another twenty years the
municipalities would push out the county. Mr. Gardner said he wanted to see the percentage of how much
would be paid per household. He said there was a greater probability for people to get hurt in a condensed
area, but that the county was paying more. He said he was probably in favor of combining the fire services
since Fayetteville is growing and expanding, and since it meant he would be living in Fayetteville due to
future annexations.

Bill Grist: Mr. Grist said he did not know which branch of government brought this matter up, and he asked
why this matter was brought up. He said he did not see any reason for the proposed consolidation. He said
if the proposal came from the city, then there were two members on the city council who have not had time
to figure out what is going on yet.

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown replied this was a proposal that came up a couple of
years ago, and that when it first came up neither he nor Commissioner Allen McCarty had information on the
initiative. He said some of the city council members had limited information. He stated that when this issue
came up again, he wanted to make sure everyone had information on this matter. He added that this matter
came up due to finances, and he acknowledged that since this matter last came up he has had continuing
conversations with members of the city council on how to work together. He said the presenting issues
were driven by efficiency and finances.

Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton agreed that finance was a big part of the discussion. He said the city
thought it would get revenue from Pinewood Studios, but that the tax abatements reduced the expected tax
revenue to the city. He stated that, in the meanwhile, the city has to stand up a fire department. Mayor
Clifton stated that the county came to the city and asked for the proposed consolidation, that the city said it
would be glad to consider the proposal should the County provide the proposal, and the county came up
with the proposal. He stated that nothing has been hidden and everything is in the open for the people to
review and make a decision on. Mayor Clifton then spoke briefly on the financial difficulties and its impacts
that the city is facing.

Chairman Brown spoke briefly about the tax abatement revenue from Pinewood Studios.

Larry Dell: Mr. Dell returned asking Chairman Brown who paid for the other public safety services. He
encouraged the city councilmembers to run for county office if they want to represent the county. Mr. Dell
said people who own property have a choice of annexation, and that annexation could be turned down. He
said the city council was elected to represent the people of the City of Fayetteville and told them that if they
could not fulfill their duties then they should “turn their badge in.” He asked the city council to think seriously
about this matter. Councilman Edwards replied to Mr. Dell's comments.

Councilman Edwards said silence does not imply complicity or agreement, but that it means he was there to
get understanding on the issues. He said he was there to hear from the citizens and he asked the people
not to jump to conclusions. He said he thought the proposal was put to rest a couple of years ago, but he
wanted to make sure all the information was provided and understood. He said Mr. Woodworth gave a
good counter-analysis. He stated this is a democratic process, and he said this meeting was for fact
gathering and hearing from the citizens. He repeated that he took his responsibility seriously.

Al Hovey-King: Mr. Hovey-King returned to the podium saying he went over the 2009 through 2013 mutual
aid responses, and he asked Fayette County Fire Chief David Scarbrough what that was. Chief Scarbrough
replied that Mr. Hovey-King was referencing material that only shows the City of Fayetteville’s Fire
Department’s data set and not quoting both data sets. Mr. Hovey-King agreed that the citizens of
Fayetteville pays for other public safety services through property taxes, and if the consolidation should be
approved, then the citizens would not have a say in its tax structure. He also stated that he would be very
surprised if the elected officials were not aware of the economic deals provided to Pinewood since those are
typical agreements when recruiting economic development to cities and councils. Mr. Hovey-King asked





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014
Page Number 8

3.

Councilman Williams, who was the City Manager for the City of Fairburn when it started its own fire
department, if he saw the benefits of having a fire department. Councilman Williams replied to Mr. Hovey-
King's question. Mr. Hovey-King asked the citizens in the room who wanted to keep the fire department to
stand in support, and several people stood up.

Adjournment

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown and Fayette County Commissioner Vice-Chairman
gave closing comments to those in attendance.

No vote was taken at any time during the Joint Meeting of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners and
the City of Fayetteville Council.

Chairman Brown adjourned the meeting at 9:15 p.m.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk Steve Brown, Fayette County Chairman

The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia, held on the 8 day of May 2014.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk










New Business #15-b

Board of Commissioners
April 10, 2014
3:00 P.M.

The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on April 10, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.

Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Commissioner Absent: Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio
Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney

Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Brown called the April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting to order at 3:04 p.m. Chairman Brown
stated that the meeting was being held early due to the need to attend early classes with the Association of County
Commissioners Georgia (ACCG) in Savannah, Georgia. He stated that the early meeting would allow the
Commissioners to travel to Savannah and be ready for those early classes.

Commissioner Barlow asked Mr. Darryl Hicks to offer the Invocation, and Mr. Hicks did so.

Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Acceptance of Agenda

Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published and to add two additional items, namely the 2014
Retreat Minutes and the Emerald Lake Dam issue. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion
followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent.

Chairman Brown pointed out that those watching on Channel 23 would only be able to hear the meeting since the

video capability was lost. He added that both the video and audio would be available on the internet, and he
apologized for the technical glitch.



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #15-b





Minutes

April 10, 2014
Page Number 2

PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:

1.

Proclamation of April 2014 as “Prevent Child Abuse Month.”

Commissioner Oddo read the Proclamation for April 2014 as “Prevent Child Abuse Month.” Ms. Becky
Smith of Fayette FACTOR and others accepted the proclamation as read and presented. The Board did
not take a vote on this matter. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.

Chairman Brown informed the audience that a publication had recently been printed recognizing Fayette
County related to its Pinewood Studios efforts. He said Fayette County had won a state award for its
collaborative efforts with the City of Fayetteville, as well as a regional award. He said it was a nice one-
page article and told those in attendance that the article was entitled “Fayette Does the Impossible to Help
an International Film Company.”

PUBLIC HEARING:

2.

Consideration of staff’'s recommendation to transfer an existing retail alcohol, beer and wine license
from Duaa, Inc. to Arif Keshwani of Keshwani Investments, LLC., also known as Shell Food Mart,
which is located at 1183 Highway 54 East.

Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs informed the Board about staff's recommendation, and she said
that the applicant has met all requirements as required by the County ordinances.

No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff's recommendation to transfer an existing retail alcohol, beer
and wine license from Duaa, Inc. to Arif Keshwani of Keshwani Investments, LLC., also known as Shell
Food Mart, which is located at 1183 Highway 54 East. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No
discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent. A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent.

3.

Approval of staff's recommendation to dispose and destroy old uniforms and other items that are no
longer serviceable. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.

Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a Project Framework Agreement with the Georgia
Department of Transportation for a multi-use bridge and accompanying path system project over
State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT PI No. 0012878). Copies of the request and
Project Framework Agreement, identified as “Attachment 4,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 3

5. Approval of staff’'s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of
Fayetteville for the Georgia Department of Transportation’s multi-use bridge and accompanying
path system project over State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT Pl No. 0012878).
Copies of the request and Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment 5,” follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.

OLD BUSINESS:
There was no item under Old Business for consideration.

NEW BUSINESS:

6. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Darryl Hicks, Pat Hinchey,
Margaret Laton and Todd Strickland to the Fayette County Development Authority for four year
terms, with said appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2018.

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Darryl
Hicks, Pat Hinchey, Margaret Laton and Todd Strickland to the Fayette County Development Authority for
four year terms, with said appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2018. Commissioner
Oddo seconded the motion.

Ms. Dawn Oparah expressed some concern and asked questions about the appointments. She pointed out
that four positions were posted for people to apply for, but five positions were being appointed. She said
she did not see where the fifth advertisement was advertised, and she asked if that position had been
posted. She asked who would be the Chairman of the Development Authority. Chairman Brown replied
that the Development Authority would appoint its own Chairman. Ms. Oparah expressed concern that
letters of approval and letters of decline are mailed prior to the actual approval of the County Board of
Commissioners, and she thought sending the letters prior to formal Board vote for approval would leave
virtually no room to appoint another applicant should additional information be discovered in the interim
between the letters being mailed and the vote to appoint taking place. Ms. Oparah recommended that
letters be sent out after the Board made its vote to appoint to positions, just in case. Ms. Oparah asked if
there was a vetting process to ensure that there is no conflict of interest. She also asked, if there is a policy
on this matter if it is public. She reminded the Board that she is serving on a committee concerning ethics
in government, and she wanted to make sure every candidate is vetted to ensure there is no conflict of
interest. She said she did not want to assume anything, but she wanted to make sure. She also asked if
there was a statement that explained what constitutes what is a conflict of interest.

Chairman Brown addressed Ms. Oparah’s concerns by saying the letters are received from the Selection
Committee and not the Board of Commissioners. He said it was professional etiquette to let the applicants
know whether or not they have been selected before they read their names in the newspaper, and that was
why the letters were mailed. He stated that the applicants get the same vetting that the elected officials
receive, namely, they are provided with a copy of the Ethics Ordinance and they are asked on the
application and in the interview whether they have any ethics concerns related to serving in that position.
He said the ethics questions are given to every applicant regardless of what board, committee, or authority
they are seeking to fill. He said if the applicant or an appointed representative is found guilty of an ethics
violation then they will be immediately extracted from the body they serve. Chairman Brown explained that
there was a resignation from the Fayette County Development Authority, and that there were thirteen





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 4

applicants for the positions on the authority. He said he asked each Commissioner if they had any
objections to going ahead and appointing the fifth member since there would be a wholly new board and a
new Chief Executive Officer of the Development Authority. He stated that no Commissioner objected to
appointing the fifth position, and that the applicants who responded to a public advertisement were vetted.
He said the process was open and in the same timeframe as when the applicants were sending
applications for a position on the Fayette County Development Authority.

Commissioner Oddo stated that the resignation came at the time that the other terms expired.

The motion to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Darryl Hicks, Pat Hinchey,
Margaret Laton, and Todd Strickland to the Fayette County Development Authority for four year terms, with
said appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2018 was passed 3-0-2 with
Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,”
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

1. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Dennis Dorsey to the
Fayette County Development Authority to the unexpired term of Randy Hayes, with said
appointment beginning April 18, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2016.

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Dennis
Dorsey to the Fayette County Development Authority to the unexpired term of Randy Hayes, with said
appointment beginning April 18, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2016. Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being
absent. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.

8. Consideration of the Fayette County Humane Society’s request to conduct a trial Trap / Neuter/
Return feral cat program and to apply for Trap / Neuter / Return grant funds to pay for the trial
project.

Ms. Sharon Marchisello, Secretary of the Fayette County Humane Society spoke to the Board and gave a
PowerPoint presentation on this issue. Fayette County Animal Control Officer Rani Rathburn also spoke in
favor of the request from the Fayette County Humane Society.

Chairman Brown moved to create an exemption to Fayette County’s Leash Law for the purpose of creating
four test Trap / Neuter / Return sites, with the permission of the City of Fayetteville and the City of
Peachtree City for their prescribed sites, with the sites being the Fayette Pavilion Shopping Center
Business District area, Bryson Lane in Fayetteville, Highway 85 Connector, and Paschal and Dividend
Drive Industrial area, for adequate reports are provided to the Fayette County Animal Control on a regular
basis as determined by the Fayette County Animal Control Department, and for funding for the project to
come through the Fayette County Humane Society. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.

County Attorney Dennis Davenport suggested that the motion include duration so that there would be a
definite starting and stopping point for this initiative. Chairman Brown asked Ms. Marchisello and Officer
Rathburn for suggestions on how long the test trial should take. After brief discussion, the decision was
made for a duration of six months.





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 5

Chairman Brown amended his motion to create an exemption to Fayette County’s Leash Law for the
purpose of creating four test Trap / Neuter / Return sites, with the permission of the City of Fayetteville and
the City of Peachtree City for their prescribed sites, with the sites being the Fayette Pavilion Shopping
Center Business District area, Bryson Lane in Fayetteville, Highway 85 Connector, and Paschal and
Dividend Drive Industrial area, for adequate reports are provided to the Fayette County Animal Control on a
regular basis as determined by the Fayette County Animal Control Department, for funding for the project to
come through the Fayette County Humane Society, and for the exemption to last for six months from the
date of the program’s implementation. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.

Chairman Brown asked Fayette County Animal Control to write a letter to the jurisdictions on this initiative
and that the Administration staff would officially send the letters to the jurisdictions.

Ms. Sharon Douchot, Animal Control Director Fred Sisson, and Ms. Kimberly Davis spoke in favor of this
request. No one spoke in opposition to this request.

Chairman Brown spoke about Ms. Marchisello saying she is working through the Humane Society and
helping Fayette County through its Faith based volunteer program. He also spoke of Officer Rathburn
saying everybody speaks well of her, that he gets nothing but good comments, and that her passion shows.
He thanked Officer Rathburn for her efforts and encouraged her to continue in her good work.

The motion to create an exemption to Fayette County’s Leash Law for the purpose of creating four test Trap
/ Neuter / Return sites, with the permission of the City of Fayetteville and the City of Peachtree City for their
prescribed sites, with the sites being the Fayette Pavilion Shopping Center Business District area, Bryson
Lane in Fayetteville, Highway 85 Connector, and Paschal and Dividend Drive Industrial area, for adequate
reports are provided to the Fayette County Animal Control on a regular basis as determined by the Fayette
County Animal Control Department, for funding for the project to come through the Fayette County Humane
Society, and for the exemption to last for six months from the beginning of the program’s implementation
passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent. Copies of the request and PowerPoint
presentation, identified as “Attachment 8,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

9. Consideration of staff’'s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-06, adding Chapter 15 to the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances- Public Health.

Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs spoke briefly on this matter and answered questions from the
Board. Officer Hobbs reminded that this item was addressed at the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners
Retreat. She said the ordinance contained the new regulations set forth by the Georgia Department of
Public Health for Tourist Accommodations. She said the regulations in the ordinance were verbatim to the
state’s regulations, and she asked for the ordinance’s adoption so it could be enforced through the County’s
Code of Ordinances.

Commissioner Oddo asked if the regulations were commonly used throughout the state. Officer Hobbs
replied that regulations became effective at the state on January 1, 2014, but that the Environmental Health
Department was waiting until this ordinance was adopted before it would begin its work in Fayette County.

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-06, adding
Chapter 15 to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances- Public Health. Commissioner Oddo seconded the





Minutes

April 10, 2014
Page Number 6

10.

1.

12.

motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being
absent. Copies of the request and Ordinance 2014-06, identified as “Attachment 9,” follow these minutes
and are made an official part hereof.

Approval of the March 27, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. Commissioner McCarty
was not present at that meeting.

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the March 27, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with
Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent.

Approval of the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat Meeting Minutes.

Chairman Brown informed the audience that the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat Meeting
Minutes were provided to the Board earlier in the day and were present with the Board on the dais. He
stated that the minutes could be obtained from the County Clerk’s office.

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with
Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent.

Consideration of staff’'s recommendation to complete design and permitting work for repairs and
enhancement of Emerald Lake Dam in The Woodlands subdivision per the “Labyrinth Weir and
Raise Dam” option.

Chairman Brown informed the audience that an additional document for this item was at the dais. He said
the document, consisting of the agenda request form, a memorandum, and a couple of PowerPoint slides,
was provided to the Board members and could be obtained from the County Clerk’s office.

County Administrator Steve Rapson provided a brief summary of this request. He stated this item was
discussed at the County Retreat. He explained that it was part of the $2 million allocation from the Board
out of the General Fund to fund the Category One Stormwater Projects. He said Emerald Lake is more
comprehensive than originally thought, so the request is for approval of $1,720,000.00. Mr. Rapson, in
answering a question from Chairman Brown, replied that it was more complex since the dam had to be
completely redone. He said it was a single point of entry for a large subdivision adjacent to a 20-acre lake,
and that a county road was on top of the dam. He said the intention was to replace a 600-foot long dam
with a bridge, and to do that (based on the short-fallings of the actual structure) the County is providing
long-term fixes. He reminded the Board that there were two recommendations, but that the long-term fix
was the most cost effective for the foreseeable future while providing a long-term repair.

Chairman Brown stated that this effort was one of a number of stormwater issues, and that the County was
trying to address the big problems first. He added that the State of Georgia requires the County to maintain
the dams to state regulations, and that this effort is a step toward fulfilling those obligations. He reminded
the audience that the Board had stated it would own problems and that while the problems will be
addressed slowly and one at a time, the County was tackling some of the bigger problems.





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 7

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff's recommendation to complete design and permitting work
for repairs and enhancement of Emerald Lake Dam in The Woodlands subdivision per the “Labyrinth Weir
and Raise Dam” option in an amount not to exceed $1,720,000.00 Commissioner Oddo seconded the
motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being
absent. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Chairman Brown moved to move the Public Comment section of the Agenda toward the front of the meeting out of
professional courtesy for colleagues who were from Peachtree City who wanted to speak. Commissioner Oddo
seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio
being absent.

Chairman Brown pointed out that two Commissioners were absent from the meeting. He said Commissioner Ognio
had to have emergency surgery and was recovering. He also told those in attendance that Commissioner McCarty
was celebrating his 52" anniversary by going on a cruise. He

Mayor Vanessa Fleisch: Peachtree City Mayor Vanessa Fleisch spoke on behalf of the Peachtree City Council
regarding the makeup of the Fayette County Development Authority. She asked the Board to amend the
Intergovernmental Agreement relating to the Fayette County Development Authority, to eliminate the representative
of the Peachtree City Development Authority, and to replace the position with a citizen representative appointed by
the Peachtree City Mayor and Council. She also asked the Board to provide, through the Intergovernmental
Agreement, for the representative Peachtree City Airport Authority to remain on the Board. She pointed out that the
Peachtree City Airport Authority is a separate governmental agency chartered by State legislation and is the sole
owner of the airport. Mayor Fleisch spoke about the contributions and benefits provided by Peachtree City and the
Peachtree City Airport Authority to Fayette County. She also read an email from Mr. Whiteley, Chairman of the
Peachtree City Airport Authority, which was written to Chairman Brown, concerning the Peachtree City Airport
Authority’s opposition to the possibility of having representation removed from the Fayette County Development
Authority. Copies of Mayor Fleisch’s notes and materials as provided to the County Clerk’s Office, identified as
“Attachment 11,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:

Safe Digging Month: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that April is “Safe Digging Month.” He said there
would be a proclamation on the April 24, 2014 Agenda, but he wanted to get the word out on behalf of the Water
System.

Selection Committee for the Public Facilities Authority: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that the
positions for the Public Facilities Authority had been advertised and that a Selection Committee needed to be
appointed. The Board appointed Chairman Brown and Commissioner Oddo to the Selection Committee.

Update on the Board of Commissioners Retreat: County Administrator Steve Rapson pointed out that the County
was projecting that it would not have any funds with a deficit balance, but rather all the funds would have an increase
to its fund balance. Mr. Rapson also reported that Fayette County is the only county in the State of Georgia with an
overfunded pension plan.





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 8

ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:

There was no Attorney’s Report.

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:

Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown said it was good to hear from the mayor of Peachtree City, and he spoke about
the Fayette County Development Authority and the Peachtree City Airport Authority. He also spoke about a letter
from Peachtree City Council Member Kim Learnard that was sent to the newspaper, and he wished that she had
spoken to individual Commissioners or the Board before writing the letter. He said the Board had worked hard to
avoid divisiveness with the municipalities, that the Board appreciates and defends her ability to make comments, but
that he wished she had come to the Board first. He added that the County had issued a press release on its position
on the District Voting lawsuit, and that the press release could be obtained from the County Clerk’s office.

EXECUTIVE SESSION.:

There was no Executive Session meeting.

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting. Commissioner Oddo
seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio
being absent.

The April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 4:12 p.m.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk Steve Brown, Chairman

The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 8th day of May 2014.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk










New Business #16

Board of Commissioners
April 24, 2014
3:00 P.M.

The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on April 24, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.

Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio
Commissioner Absent: Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
Staff Present: Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk

Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney

Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Brown called the April 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.

Commissioner McCarty offered the Invocation.

Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Acceptance of Agenda

Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda while removing New Business Item #11 from the Agenda.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner

Oddo being absent from the meeting.

PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:

1. Proclamation of April 26, 2014 as “Fayette County Pet Appreciation Day,” and recognition of the
Fayette County Humane Society.

Chairman Brown read the proclamation of April 26, 2014 as “Fayette County Pet Appreciation Day,” and he
recognized the Fayette County Humane Society. Dr. Britton Hammet-McCurry and Animal Control Officer
Rani Rathburn spoke about the importance of Fayette County Pet Appreciation Day and of the work of the
Fayette County Humane Society. Copies of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 1,”
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.



FJones

Typewritten Text

New Business #16





Minutes
April 24, 2014
Page Number 2

2, Proclamation of April 2014 as “Safe Digging Month in Fayette County.”

Commissioner McCarty read the proclamation of April 2014 as “Safe Digging Month in Fayette County.”
Copies of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 2,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.

3. Proclamation of May 2014 as “Foster Care Month,” and the week of May 12-18, 2014 as “Foster
Parent Appreciation Week.”

Commissioner Barlow read the proclamation of May 2014 as “Foster Care Month,” and the week of May 12-
18 as “Foster Parent Appreciation Week.” Ms. Susan Boggs of the Fayette County Department of Family
and Children Services and foster parent Alicia Smith spoke about the need and importance of foster care
and foster parents. Copies of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 3,” follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.

4. Recognition of the Sandy Creek SkillsUSA Chapter.

Chairman Brown read the recognition of the Sandy Creek SkillsUSA Chapter. The Board specifically
recognized students Kasey Mekonian, Katherine Gilmer, Madison Riley and Carlisle Vidourek. Coach and
Advisor Jeffrey Dykes spoke briefly about the Sandy Creek SkillsUSA Chapter. Copies of the request and
recognition, identified as “Attachment 4,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

Chairman Brown announced that Commissioner Oddo could not attend the meeting since he has a family member
who is ill and who lives out of the county, and he said Commissioner Oddo had left the country to be with his family.
He added that County Administrator Steve Rapson was also not attending the meeting since his mother passed
away on Easter Sunday. He asked everyone to pray for keep both men and their families.

PUBLIC HEARING:

There were no items for Public Hearing.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the Consent Agenda as read. Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.
The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner Oddo being absent.

5. Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for authorization to file continuation
and enhancement grant applications, on behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, with
the Governor’s Office for Children and Families, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said
documents. Copies of the request and supporting documents, identified as “Attachment 5,” follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

6. Approval of staff’'s recommendation to declare a walk-in freezer as unserviceable and to authorize
staff to sell the walk-in freezer on GovDeals.com with proceeds from the sale returning to Fayette
County’s General Fund. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.





Minutes

April 24, 2014
Page Number 3

1.

Approval of staff’'s recommendation to add Claudia’s Cove to the Fayette County Street Light
Program. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.

Approval of staff’'s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-07 enacting a new County Code
entitled “The Code of Fayette County, Georgia.”

Chairman Brown thanked County Attorney Dennis Davenport and his law firm for working to enact the new
County Code. He told everyone that Fayette County, prior to the current Board, had not codified its
ordinances for about seven or eight years creating a cumbersome process in using the ordinances. He
stated that the codification meant the ordinances were now in one form, and would be easily accessed from
the website. Mr. Davenport credited Municode for working with the county in the codification process.
Copies of the request and Ordinance 2014-07, identified as “Attachment 8,” follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.

OLD BUSINESS:

There were no items of Old Business for consideration.

NEW BUSINESS:

9.

10.

Consideration of the Selection Committee’s nomination of James L. Preau to the Fayette County
Water Committee.

Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the Selection Committee’s nomination of James L. Preau to the
Fayette County Water Committee. Commissioners Barlow and McCarty seconded the motion. No
discussion followed. The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner Oddo being absent. A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 9,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-08, establishing Operating
Regulations for Short Term Lodging and Tourist Accommodations by designating Sections 6-165
through 6-205 of Article Vi as a new Article pertaining to “Tourist accommodations” to Chapter 6 of
the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, becoming effective June 1, 2014.

Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs said this issue had been discussed for the past couple of months.
She said it cooperated with the State’s new regulations that passed for public health, and is a mirror image
to state law.

Commissioner Ognio asked if a percentage of usage could be added to the ordinance, and he suggested if
the property owners used the property more than 50% of the year as short-term rental then it has to be
commercial, meaning commercial use would be disallowed in residential areas. He said if the County did
not do something, then its zoning would be affected since there would be commercial uses in residential-
zoned areas of the county.

County Attorney Dennis Davenport replied to Commissioner Ognio saying this matter was discussed in
several meetings. He reminded the Board that the real issue that is causing negative impacts with short-
term rentals is the use of the property that is inconsistent with a single-family residential use. He said
examples of the inconsistent uses were holding big, noisy, and unwelcome gatherings that do not fit the





Minutes
April 24, 2014
Page Number 4

character of the neighborhood. He said one thing staff did with the ordinance was to limit special events, as
defined in the ordinance, only in regards to tourist accommodation in commercial-zoned areas. He stated
that a person running tourist accommodations in residential-zoned areas cannot have special events that
would normally be acceptable in commercial-zoned areas. He said the ordinance only allow guests in a
residential structure that the residential use that everyone else is abiding by, and he explained some of the
limitations that were suggested. He said this ordinance would go a long way of getting rid of the
commercial aspects of short-term rentals with a focus on the residential aspects, so that neighbors should
not be able to tell if a person is occupying a residence on a short-term basis or if they are living at the
house for twenty-five years. He said if there were complaints about a big gathering or a special event, then
it the location could be in violation of the ordinance.

Commissioner Ognio replied that he was still concerned that if the property was being used more than 50%
of the time for short-term rental then it would be a business; thus, a commercial use in a residential
location. He asked if this ordinance would open the door for other commercial actions. Mr. Davenport
replied that the ordinance was designed so that people would not be able to look at the property and tell it
was being used for commercial use. He said he understood Commissioner Ognio’s concern, but the
ordinance would not allow for someone to simply know that commercial activity was occurring at the house.
Commissioner Ognio asked if that would give the ability for anyone to have a business inside their home for
commercial purposes so long as no one knew. Mr. Davenport said if this matter was taken to the logical
extreme, when a person buys a home that is a commercial transaction. Commissioner Ognio replied that if
this aspect was not studied, there could be zoning issues in the future since there is no way to control
commercial uses in residential areas.

Commissioner McCarty said he looked up the definition of business and found it is a person’s regular
occupation or trade, and is the practice of making one’s living by engaging in commerce. He said he
looked at the definition of commerce and found it is the activity of building, of buying and selling, especially
on a large scale of goods and service in the practice of making a living. He said people are allowed to grow
honey in their yard without calling it a business in any zoning. He said his house is zoned R-70, but it was
formally A-R, and he can sell money from his house without a license, permit, and without paying additional
taxes with others’ knowledge. He said he was totally against anything that will restrict a person’s right to
use their own personal property that they pay tax on. He added that under the Constitution, people are
guaranteed the right to use their property. He added that Fayette County became a Constitutional County a
few meetings earlier, and that he was against the proposed ordinance. He stated that the County already
has the means necessary to take care of problems through law enforcement, as well as the authority, to
handle problems. He said the county should enforce the problems with the means it already has. He
stated this was another way to impose a tax, and that federal laws may also have to be imposed. He
concluded that he would vote against the proposed ordinance.

Commissioner Barlow said he understood Code Enforcement could not enforce any of the ordinances
against people “in violation.” He reminded everyone that people were in the audience who informed the
Board of multiple disturbances due to short-term rentals, and that there was no enforcement rules in place.
Officer Hobbs agreed with Commissioner Barlow. Commissioner Barlow replied that the ordinance would
allow Code Enforcement to work with violators to the ordinance in order to keep the peace. Officer Hobbs
added that the property owners would have to have a permit to have short-term rentals. Commissioner
Barlow asked Officer Hobbs if she recommended the ordinance as presented, and Officer Hobbs replied
that she did. Commissioner Barlow then asked Mr. Davenport if he recommended the ordinance as
presented, and Mr. Davenport replied he did since it provides appropriate regulations. Commissioner
Barlow added that if the Board errs on the side of the caution then it has the ability to amend the ordinance.





Minutes

April 24, 2014
Page Number 5

1.

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-08, establishing
Operating Regulations for Short Term Lodging and Tourist Accommodations by designating Sections 6-165
through 6-205 of Article VI as a new Article pertaining to “Tourist accommodations” to Chapter 6 of the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances, becoming effective June 1, 2014. Commissioner Ognio seconded the
motion.

Chairman Brown said he thought the proposed ordinance was an example where there was no perfect or
even a really good solution. He said the Board was just trying to put a stake in the ground. He agreed that
if the ordinance needs to be modified then it will be modified. He said the neighbors of the homes would
keep an eye on the property and report the issues to Officer Hobbs.

County Attorney Dennis Davenport reminded the Board that Ordinance 2014-08 will provide for the
enactment of an Excise Tax. He stated that the motion did not mention an Excise Tax, but he wanted it on
the record that the ordinance would enact a 3% Excise Tax. He also said that the ordinance presented to
the Board was not final since there were scriveners’ errors that needed to be corrected; however, passing
the ordinance would demonstrate the Board'’s intention of putting the regulations on the books effective
June 1, 2014. Mr. Davenport also informed the Board that the Ordinance refers to a Schedule of Fees, but
that the schedule is not actually in the ordinance. He stated that there would have to be a second motion to
adopt the Schedule of Fees, and that the Schedule of Fees would come before the Board prior to June 1,
2014.

Commissioner McCarty suggested that this ordinance would regulate people having weddings on their
property, but he was informed that it would not prevent him from having a wedding on his property.
However, if he charged to have weddings on his property, the activity would be regulated by this ordinance.

Commissioner Barlow amended his motion to approve staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-08
enacting an Excise Tax and establishing Operating Regulations for Short Term Lodging and Tourist
Accommodations by designating Sections 6-165 through 6-205 of Article VI as a new Article pertaining to
“Tourist accommodations” to Chapter 6 of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, becoming effective
June 1, 2014. Commissioner Ognio seconded the amended motion.

Mr. Ray Swann and Mr. David Arnold spoke in favor of the recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-08
while speaking about the ongoing problems in their neighborhood. Mrs. Denise Ognio asked a question
about this ordinance. No one spoke in opposition to the recommendation.

The motion to approve staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-08 enacting an Excise Tax and
establishing Operating Regulations for Short Term Lodging and Tourist Accommodations by designating
Sections 6-165 through 6-205 of Article VI as a new Article pertaining to “Tourist accommodations” to
Chapter 6 of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, becoming effective June 1, 2014 passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner Oddo being absent. Copies of the request and Ordinance 2014-08, identified as
“Attachment 10,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

Consideration of staff’'s recommendation to consolidate the City of Fayetteville’s Fire Department
into the Fayette County Fire Department, and for the consolidation of the departments to become
fully operational on July 1, 2014.





Minutes

April 24, 2014
Page Number 6

12.

13.

14,

This item was removed from the Agenda at the acceptance of the Agenda. A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 11,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Consideration of a request from the Environmental Health Department to adopt proposed
Environmental Health Fee Schedule revisions.

Environmental Health County Manager Robert Kurbes and he said his department is charged with
regulating both local and state mandated health related ordinances. He said the biggest regulations are the
on-site sewage disposal or septic system program, the food service or restaurant inspection program, and
tourist accommodation program that just got a little bit bigger. He stated that his department was
established in 1980 for the first time in Fayette County, and that over the years the department has grown
with the county, businesses, and workload. He said when the housing market took a hit, so did his
department. He told the Board that the department is paying for the suffering as there is a backlog of new
construction permits existing in his department, but that the workload is not being met with the current
staffing. He told the Board that he was authorized to bring on a new inspector, and that the inspector is in
training and is already shouldering part of the workload. He said it would be a few months before she is
fully functional. Mr. Kurbes said that historically the Health Department has imposed fees for services to
offset costs, and that the fees have been reviewed on about a ten-year basis. He said the current proposal
avoided looking at body art fees and on-site sewage management fees that had recently been adjusted,
and that he focused on fees that have not been adjusted since 2004. He spoke about how he arrived at the
currently proposed fees and he told that the fees were reasonable for the services performed.

Commissioner Barlow spoke about the new hire to the Health Department and asked how she would fill the
work requirements. Mr. Kurbes replied that she would be able to be an effective solo inspector once she
has completed all of her certifications. He said she is already helping the department, but she is not
allowed by law to go out and perform certain functions until she is certified. He stated that until she is
certified, then the Environmental Health Department was still short-handed.

Chairman Brown thanked Mr. Kurbes for his work, and he said the Board is fully aware that the
Environmental Health Department lost good employees and that the department is working on a bare-
bones budget while shouldering a lot of complaints. He thanked Mr. Kurbes for enduring quite a few years
of chaos. Mr. Kurbes thanked the Board for its compliments and said that while he reports to the state he
feels that he also reports to the Board as he considers Fayette County home.

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the request from the Environmental Health Department to adopt
proposed Environmental Health Fee Schedule revisions. Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion. No
discussion followed. The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner Oddo being absent. A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 12,” follows these

Consideration of the April 9, 2014 Joint Meeting Minutes of the Fayette County’s Board of
Commissioners and the City of Fayetteville’s City Council. Commissioners McCarty and Ognio were
not present for this meeting.

Consideration of the April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. Commissioners
McCarty and Ognio were not present for this meeting.

Chairman Brown pointed out that there was not a quorum present of those who were in attendance for the
April 9 Meeting Minutes and the April 10, 2014 Meeting Minutes.





Minutes
April 24, 2014
Page Number 7

Chairman Brown moved to table the April 9, 2014 Joint Meeting Minutes and the April 10, 2014 Board of
Commissioners Meeting Minutes to the May 8, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting. Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner Oddo
being absent.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Emory McHugh: Mr. McHugh spoke for approximately sixteen minutes about his concerns about the finances of
Fayette County, and he felt the need to update his concerns that were raised at the March 11, 2014 Board of
Commissioners meeting. He reminded the Board that at the previous meeting he raised concerns about the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013. He said the CAFR is
prepared by the County’s staff and that he had nothing to do with preparing that document. He reminded the Board
that on March 11, 2014 he came to the Board to inform it that the CAFR was misleading and materially misstated,
and he spoke about the response he received from the Board at the time. He stated that after the March 11, 2014
meeting, he decided to do further investigation into the CAFR in order to get facts. Mr. McHugh then spoke about
his letter to the county’s auditors, about his belief that Open Records was not provided to him properly, about
information obtained from the State Auditor’s Office, of questions to and responses from the County Finance’s
Department and of continuing concerns with the CAFR. He maintained that the CAFR remains materially misstated.
He closed saying he was concerned that the County’s revised CAFR shows that the County lost more than $9 million
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. He said that in his personal opinion, based on the information received the
one day earlier from the County’s Finance Department, he felt the loss was much higher. He quipped that he hoped
the citizens would not find out and become over stressed, and he asked the Board to remember the third model of
government as written in George Orwell’'s 1984: “Ignorance is Strength.”

Robert Mudrinich: Mr. Mudrinich gave a letter to the Board and spoke to the Board of his request to change a
school zone speed limit on Redwine Road for the South School Complex, around the Panther Path area, from 35
miles per hour to 25 miles per hour. Chairman Brown complimented Mr. Mudrinich for his research and said staff
would examine his request. A copy of the letter, identified as “Attachment 13,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:

There was no Administrator’'s Report.

ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:

New Business Item #10: County Attorney Dennis Davenport followed up on New Business #19- Tourist
Accommodations saying staff would likely bring the Schedule of Fees to the Board at the May 8, 2014 meeting.

March 27, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: County Attorney Dennis Davenport informed the Board that there
were Executive Session Minutes were available for review, but that there were no other Executive Session items to
discuss. He asked for the Board’s pleasure in whether or not it wanted to go into Executive Session to review the
minutes. The Board consented to wait until the May 8, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.





Minutes
April 24, 2014
Page Number 8

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:

Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty thanked everyone for coming and giving comments. He said the
presenters did a good job. He said everyone who is enforcing ordinances has their hand’s full, and there are not
enough people to enforce all the ordinances. He said his opinion was on the record and there were things that need
to be addressed and fixed as they come up.

Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio thanked everyone for their thoughts and prayers, saying it was good to
get back. He then replied to Mr. McHugh's public comments. Commissioners Brown and McCarty added to
Commissioner Ognio’s comments.

Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow said he was in the Leadership Fayette class. He said Mr. Rob
Parker, the Executive Director of Southern Ground, shared a maxim that he thought was very interesting, namely,
that a leader strives for the ability of when his identify is displayed when they call on a phone that the person on the
other end of the phone finds it to be a good moment and they look forward to hearing what he has to say. He said it
should not be where someone sees a name come up and the person on the other end “kicks it to ‘leave a

message .

Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown acknowledged that previous County Commissioner Dennis Berkelbaugh passed
away recently. He stated that Commissioner Berkelbaugh was elected into office in 1982 and that he served as a
Commissioner for four years, and that he served as Chairman of the Board for two of his four years. Chairman
Brown stated that the thoughts and prayers of the Board are with the Berkelbaugh family during this time, and that
the Board appreciated his service to the people of Fayette County.

Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio said the thoughts and prayers of the Board are with County
Administrator Steve Rapson on his mother’s passing on Easter Sunday. He also stated that the Board’s thoughts
and prayers are with Commissioner Charles Oddo and his family as they are dealing with health issues. Chairman
Brown commented on how trying things have been for individual board and staff members during the past month.

Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown told those new attendees to the meeting that Mr. McHugh comes to the meeting
and often gives snide remarks. He said the Board gives him a lot of time and let him speak. He said Mr. McHugh
does a lot of Open Records Requests and is a formal disgruntled employee. He said the County does respond to
his Open Record Requests to the best of its ability, and that he takes pride in the fact that Fayette County has one of
the most open and transparent governments in the State of Georgia. He said a lot of people have recognized
Fayette County for its openness. He stated that the County takes the complaints and the criticisms just as it takes
awards and compliments and accolades, and that people are more than welcome to come to a Board of
Commissioners meeting and have their say. Chairman Brown then briefly replied to Mr. McHugh’s public comments.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

There was no Executive Session meeting.





Minutes
April 24, 2014
Page Number 9

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the April 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting. Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion. There was no discussion. The motion passed 4-0-1.

The April 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 8:42 p.m.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk Steve Brown, Chairman

The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 8th day of May 2014.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk










FOUNDED
MAY 15, 1821

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio

*
STAFF

Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk

*

MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214

*

MEETING TIMES
2" and 4" Thursday each month 7:00 pm

*

COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex
Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210

*

WEB SITE
www.fayettecountyga.gov

*

E-MAIL
administration@fayettecountyga.gov

Agenda

Board of Commissioners
May 8, 2014
7:00 P.M.

Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance

Acceptance of Agenda

PROCLAMATION / RECOGNITION:

1. Proclamation of Saturday, May 17, 2014 as “Armed Forces Day in Fayette
County.”

2. Recognition of six outgoing Fayette County Development Authority Board
Members.

3. Proclamation to be presented to the Fayette County Farm Bureau
recognizing Tuesday, May 13, 2014 as Farmer Appreciation Day.

4, Recognition of Andrew Fleming, a local 7-year-old, who will host a food
drive for Fayette Samaritans on Saturday, May 10, 2014.

5. Recognition of the J.C. Booth Middle School's Science Olympiad Team’s
state championship win.

PUBLIC HEARING:

CONSENT AGENDA:

6. Approval of Resolution 2014-12 adopting the “Fayette County 2013 Annual
Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2013), including Comprehensive
Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and
Short-Term Work Program (FY2014-FY2018).”

7. Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #872 to E.R. Snell
Contracting of Tyrone, in an amount not to exceed $1,643,319.00, for the
purchase of asphalt for Fiscal Year 2015.

OLD BUSINESS:

8. Discussion of recommendations from the Planning and Zoning Department

and the Planning Commission concerning amendments to the
Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Plan Map and the Zoning Ordinance for
the area along the State Route 74 South Corridor.





Agenda

May 8, 2014
Page Number 2

NEW BUSINESS:

9.

Consideration of Zane and Audrey Ardis’ request to amend the Agricultural-Residential (A-R) Zoning District
to allow weddings and events as a Conditional Use.

10. Consideration of a citizen’s request to amend the Fayette County Code and Zoning Ordinance concerning
Farmers Markets, Flea Markets and Craft Fairs.

1. Recognition of Dr. William Adcox and Dr. Brian K. Nadolne regarding their work in promoting total health.

12. Consideration of a request from the Georgia Department of Transportation for an intersection improvement
at Harp Road, Seay Road and State Route 92 and approval for the Chairman to sign the letter of support
(GDQOT PI10009972).

13. Consideration of staff's recommendation to approve a request from Fayetteville First Baptist Church for a
curb cut on the access drive to the Sheriff's Office and to provide an easement to the church for the
driveway cut with the church being responsible for maintaining the driveway cut.

14, Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-09 pertaining to Chapter 13 of the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances concerning Pawnbrokers, Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and
Flea Market Operators.

15. Consideration of the April 9, 2014 Joint Meeting Minutes of the Fayette County’s Board of Commissioners
and the City of Fayetteville’s City Council, and consideration of the April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners
Meeting Minutes. Commissioners McCarty and Ognio were not present for these meetings.

16. Consideration of the April 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. Commissioner Oddo was not
present for this meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:

ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

ADJOURNMENT:







New Business #14

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Code Enforcement Presenter(s): Officer Kathy Hobbs
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-09 pertaining to Chapter 13 of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances
concerning Pawnbrokers, Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators.

Background/History/Details:

Adoption of Ordinance 2014-10 will bring Fayette County's Code of Ordinances into compliance with the State of Georgia's code. The
Sheriff's Office will continue to handle reporting on these matters. Code Enforcement will handle the application process and issuance of
permits.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-09 pertaining to Chapter 13 of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances
concerning Pawnbrokers, Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal
Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes
Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #14





STATE OF GEORGIA

FAYETTE COUNTY
ORDINANCE
NO. 2014-__

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE
COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO PAWNBROKERS,
DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METALS AND GEMS AND FLEA MARKET OPERATORS;
TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES;
TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH,
SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE
COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF
THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT
PERTAINS TO PAWNBROKERS, DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METALS AND GEMS

AND FLEA MARKET OPERATORS (CHAPTER 13), BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. By deleting Chapter 13, pertaining to ‘“Pawnbrokers, Dealers in Precious Metals
and Gems and Flea Market Operators”, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a
new Chapter 13, to be numbered and read as presented in Exhibit “A”, which is

attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference.

Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the

Board of Commissioners for Fayette County.

1





Section 3.

Section 4.

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are

hereby repealed.

In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance
shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall
in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of
this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section,
subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or
unconstitutional were not a part thereof. The Board of Commissioners hereby
declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had
known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or

unconstitutional.





SO ENACTED this day of ,2014.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
FAYETTE COUNTY

By:
Steve Brown, Chairman

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Floyd Jones, County Clerk

Approved as to form:

County Attorney





CHAPTER 13. PAWNBROKERS, DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METALS AND GEMS
AND FLEA MARKET OPERATORS.

ARTICLE I. PAWNBROKERS.
Sec. 13-1. Findings and intent.

This ordinance is adopted to address the interest of public safety, health and the welfare
of the community and to aid and assist in the recovery of stolen property, and to aid and assist
local law enforcement in fulfilling their public safety functions.

Sec. 13-2. Definitions.

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this Article, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this section or shall have the same meaning as set forth in the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated, § 44-12-130, should those definitions differ:

Employee shall mean any person who works in a pawnshop, whether on a part-time or
full-time basis, regardless of whether remuneration is received or not.

Licensee shall mean a person holding a license issued by Fayette County to engage in the
business of being a pawnbroker and/or to operate a pawnshop.

Month shall mean that period of time from one date in a calendar month to the
corresponding date in the following calendar month, but if there is no such corresponding date,
then the last day of such following month.

Pawnbroker shall mean any person engaged in whole or in part in the business of lending
money on the security of pledged goods, or in the business of purchasing tangible personal
property on the condition that it may be redeemed or repurchased by the seller for a fixed price
within a fixed period of time, or in the business of purchasing tangible personal property from
persons or sources other than manufacturers or licensed dealers as a part of or in conjunction
with the business activities described in this paragraph.

Pawnshop shall mean any place of business operated by a pawnbroker where pawn
transactions take place.

Pawn transaction shall mean any loan on the security of pledged goods or any purchase
of pledged goods on the condition that the pledged goods may be redeemed or repurchased by
the pledger or seller for a fixed price within a fixed period of time.

Person shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, trust,
association, or any other legal entity however organized.

Pledged goods shall mean tangible personal property, including, without limitation, all
types of motor vehicles or any motor vehicle certificate of title, which property is purchased by,





deposited with, or otherwise actually delivered into the possession of a pawnbroker in connection
with a pawn transaction. However, for purposes of this Article, possession of any motor vehicle
certificate of title which has come into the possession of a pawnbroker through a pawn
transaction made in accordance with law shall be conclusively deemed to be possession of the
motor vehicle, and the pawnbroker shall retain physical possession of the motor vehicle
certificate of title for the entire length of the pawn transaction but shall not be required in any
way to retain physical possession of the motor vehicle at any time. The term “pledged goods”
shall not include choses in action, securities, or printed evidences of indebtedness.

Sec. 13-3. Employees.

No person shall be an employee of a pawnshop in any capacity until such person has been
fingerprinted by the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department and has been issued an annual permit
authorizing such person to be employed by a pawnshop. It shall be the duty of the pawnbroker
to assure that there is compliance with the provisions of this section.

Sec. 13-4. General policies and purposes.

(a) Pawnbrokers may operate only after the issuance of a license for such operation by the
County and only in the manner permitted by such license. Pawn transactions may only occur
through a licensee who complies with the rules and regulations of this Article and with the
licensing, regulatory and revenue requirements of the State of Georgia.

(b) All licenses are a mere grant or privilege subject to all terms and conditions imposed by
this ordinance and State law and subject to being revoked by the County.

(©) Each licensee of the County shall display the license issued under this Article
prominently at all times at the outlet for which the license is issued. A separate license must be
issued for each outlet of sale and a separate application must be made for each outlet.

Sec. 13-5. Qualifications for issuance of license.

Any person who desires to obtain a license to engage in the business of a being a
pawnbroker and/or for the operation of a pawnshop must meet the minimum qualifications set
forth in this section. If the applicant is a partnership, each partner must meet the qualifications of
any individual license and must make sworn statements of these qualifications as part of the
applications process. If the applicant is a corporation, the majority stockholder and each
principle officer of the corporation must meet the qualifications as part of the applications
process.

(a) No owner, employee, pawnbroker or any person connected with a pawnshop for which a
license or permit is sought shall have been convicted of a crime involving "moral turpitude" or
shall have been convicted of any crime involving felony theft, burglary, robbery, or a violation of
the "Family Violence Act."





(b) No license shall be granted to an applicant who is under the age of eighteen (18) years of
age.

(©) All persons filing an application for a pawnshop license will be required to complete a
waiver in order for the applicant’s criminal history to be obtained.

(d) No license shall be granted where the applicant has had any pawnshop license issued by
any county, municipality, or other governmental subdivision suspended or revoked.

(e) No license shall be granted for a location that is not in compliance with any federal, state,
or local regulation including, but not limited to, a state certificate of occupancy or a Fayette
County certificate of occupancy.

) No license shall be issued where the applicant has supplied false information in the
license application or where any required fee has not been paid by such applicant, including any
fees or assessments owed to other departments of the County.

Sec. 13-6. Annual permit.

Before operating a pawnshop or becoming an employee of a pawnshop, any person must
first file an application with Fayette County Code Enforcement for a permit to operate or be
employed in the pawnshop, pursuant to the following:

(a) The application shall be made on an annual basis;

(b) No permit shall be issued until a fee in an amount established by action of the County, a
copy of which is on file with Code Enforcement, is paid to the County;

(c) The application shall state the physical address of the pawnshop;

(d) The application shall contain the full name, street address, mailing address, phone
number, facsimile number, e-mail address, Social Security number, and date of birth and of any
employee, owner, or pawnbroker;

(e) Code Enforcement or any other officer of the County designated by the County
Administrator shall investigate each applicant for such license and shall make a report to the
Board of Commissioners as to whether such applicant is a person of good character and as to
whether such applicant has been convicted of a criminal offense as described in subsection (a) of
Section 13-5 of this Article.

Sec. 13-7. Application.

(a) All applications required in Section 13-6 of this Article shall be in writing and on forms
provided by Code Enforcement.





(b) All applications shall be completed by the applicant and sworn to and signed by the
applicant in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths.

(©) All applicants shall furnish all data, information and records requested of them, and
failure to furnish such data, information, and records within thirty (30) days from the date of
such request shall automatically serve as grounds to deny the application. An applicant, by filing
an application, agrees to produce for questioning any person(s) who are considered relevant to
the ascertainment of facts relative to such license, as may be requested by Code Enforcement, the
Fayette County Sheriff’s Department, or other official designated by the County Administrator.
The failure to produce such persons within thirty (30) days after being requested to do so may
result in denial of the application.

(d) No pawnshop shall be operated at the same location or in the same premises with the
sale, dealing in, exchange, or handling of other than new goods, wares, or merchandise. No
license for the sale, dealing in, exchange, or handling of other than new goods, wares, or
merchandise shall be issued for a location licensed as a pawnshop.

(e) Each applicant shall certify on the application that they have read this Article and, if the
license is granted, each licensee shall maintain a copy of this Article on the premises.

) Upon receipt of an application, as well as all accompanying documents and required
investigative and license fees, Code Enforcement will begin a criminal investigation of the
applicant and prepare a written criminal investigation report detailing all information relating to
fingerprinting, criminal history, arrest data, and other matters pertinent to law enforcement.
Upon completion of the criminal investigation report, Code Enforcement shall assemble the
tendered application forms and accompanying documents relating to the investigation and
processing of the application and deliver such documents to the County Administrator or his or
her designee. If the criminal investigation report shows that the applicant meets the requirements
set by this Article and all other requirements of this Article are satisfied, then the County
Administrator or his or her designee shall schedule the application for hearing at the next
regularly scheduled public hearing calendar before the Board of Commissioners and shall so
inform the applicant of this fact before such meeting. If the criminal investigation report shows
that the applicant fails to meet the requirements set by this Article, or if the applicant fails to
meet all other requirements outlined by this Article, then the County Administrator or his or her
designee shall inform the applicant, in writing, that the application has been denied, and shall set
forth in reasonable detail the reasons for the denial and shall notify the applicant of his or her
right to appeal. Such appeal shall be before the Board of Commissioners in accordance with
Section 13-17 of this Article. If an applicant desires to appeal a denial, the applicant must file a
written request for an appeal with the County Administrator within ten (10) business days of the
date of the written notice informing the applicant of the denial of the license.

(2) Any application that the County Administrator or his or her designee determines to
satisfy all the requirements outlined in this Article, including character requirements as contained
in the criminal investigation report of Code Enforcement, shall be scheduled for review at the
next regularly scheduled public meeting of the Board of Commissioners. At that meeting, the
applicant and any person opposed to such application has the right to present to the Board of





Commissioners any information that the Board of Commissioners determines is relevant to the
licensing decision. In making its determination on whether to approve or deny the application,
the Board of Commissioners shall look to the qualifications set forth in this Article and consider
the public interest and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County. The Board of Commissioners
shall have the discretion to grant or deny the application based on the information presented. A
decision by the Board of Commissioners shall be made within thirty (30) days from the date of
the public hearing, unless the decision is postponed for purposes of obtaining additional
information deemed necessary for consideration of the application. Notice of the decision by the
Board of Commissioners shall be mailed to the applicant. If the application is denied, such
written notification shall set forth in reasonable detail the reasons for the denial and shall notify
the applicant of his or her right to appeal. Such appeal shall be taken solely in accord with
Section 13-17 of this Article.

(h) In all instances in which an application is denied, the applicant may not reapply for the
same type of license for at least one (1) year from the date of denial.

(1) Upon the issuance of a license, the licensee must have and continuously maintain in the
County a registered agent upon whom any process, notice, or demand required or permitted by
law or under this Article may be served. This person must be an individual and must be a
resident of the County. The licensee shall submit the name of such agent, along with the written
consent of such agent, to Code Enforcement. The identity of the agent may also be submitted
contemporaneous to filing the license application.

() Upon approval by the Board of Commissioners of the application for a license, Code
Enforcement shall issue a license in accordance with the approved application. If the applicant is
an individual, the license shall be issued in the name of the individual. If the application is a
corporation, the license shall be issued in the name of the corporation and in the name of the
majority stockholder or a principal officer of the corporation. If the application is a partnership,
the license shall be issued in the name of the partnership and in the name of one of the partners.
All licenses issued shall be granted for the full calendar year or for the number of months
remaining in the calendar year. Any applicant granted a license before July 1 shall pay the full
license fee without proration. License fees for licenses granted on or after July 1 shall be one-
half the annual license fee. License fees are not refundable once the license is granted by the
County.

Sec. 13-8. Commencement and forfeiture.

(a) All holders of licenses under this Article must, within six (6) months after the issuance of
the license, open for business the establishment referred to in the license, unless such period is
extended by the County Administrator or his or her designee. Failure to open the licensed
establishment as referred to in this subsection within the six-month period shall serve as an
automatic forfeiture and cancellation of the license, and no refund of license fees shall be made
to the license holder.

(b) Any holders of a license under this Article who shall begin the operation of the





business as authorized in the license, but who shall for a period of three (3) consecutive months
thereafter cease to operate the business as authorized in the license, shall automatically forfeit his
license, which license shall by virtue of such failure to operate be canceled without the necessity
for any further action by the County Administrator or his or her designee or the Board of
Commissioners.

Sec. 13-9. Renewals and transfers.

(a) Any license holder subject to this ordinance shall apply for renewal of any existing
license and shall pay the annual license fee no later than December 1 of each calendar year in
which it does business.

(b) No license granted for a pawnshop shall be transferable except upon application to Code
Enforcement in the same form and manner, and subject to the same requirements with respect to
the transferee as are applicable in an original application. Any such license may be transferred
only to another applicant doing the same business at the same place as the license holder to
whom the license was originally issued. When permission for transfer has been granted, the
original licensee or transferee shall cause the license to be delivered to the County Administrator
or his or her designee who shall record such transfer, and the transferee shall pay a fee as a
condition precedent to engaging in operations under the license. The fee for such transfer shall
be established in a schedule of fees adopted by the Board of Commissioners.

Sec. 13-10.  Disposal of articles.

Any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop who makes a loan on pledged goods, or
buys pledged goods on the condition that the seller may repurchase said goods, shall hold said
goods for at least thirty (30) days before disposing of them by sale, transfer, shipment or
otherwise. Non-pledged goods bought under this section shall be held for at least seven (7)
calendar days before disposing of them by sale, transfer, shipment or otherwise.

Sec. 13-11. Minors.

It shall be unlawful for any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop to receive goods in
pawn, trade, purchase or sale from a person of less than 18 years of age.

Sec. 13-12. Hours of operation.

All holders of licenses under this division shall operate only between 8:00 a.m. and 9:00
p-m., Monday through Saturday.

Sec. 13-13.  Lost or stolen items.

(a) It shall be the duty of every person operating a pawnshop or employed by a pawnshop to
report to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department any article or goods sold or pawned to him or
her if he or she shall have a reason to believe that the article or goods were stolen or lost when
presented by the seller or customer.





(b) With respect to any items which would normally have a serial number or other means of
identification, if any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop becomes aware that such items
have had the identification removed, defaced or destroyed, such fact shall be immediately
reported to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department.

(©) If it is determined that an item bought, sold, traded or pawned by a seller or customer to
the pawnbroker or his or her employee is the subject of any reported theft, then the surrender of
said item to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department shall be done upon demand.

Sec. 13-14.  Suspension and revocation of license.

Immediate suspension, revocation, or forfeiture of a license issued by the Board of
Commissioners shall occur only after notice and opportunity for a hearing before the Board of
Commissioners consistent with the procedures set forth in Section 13-17 and only upon the
following occurrences:

(a) Any license issued under this Article for the operation of a pawnshop shall be
immediately revoked in the case of bankruptcy, receivership or levy of legal process upon the
licensed outlet or property therein.

(b) Except as provided in Section 13-9, any change in the ownership of any entity operating
or owning a licensed outlet shall be grounds for revocation of the license by the Board of
Commissioners.

(©) A license shall be immediately suspended or revoked by the Board of Commissioners
upon learning that a licensee furnished fraudulent or untruthful information in the application for
a license, or omits information required in the application for a license, or fails to pay all fees,
taxes, or other charges imposed under the provisions of this Article.

(d) The Board of Commissioners shall immediately suspend or revoke the license of any
licensee who does not meet the qualifications set forth in this Article at any time such
information becomes known to the Board of Commissioners.

Sec. 13-15. Record of transactions.

(a) Every pawnbroker shall maintain a permanent electronic record of its pawn transactions
in which an accurate description of all property pledged, traded or sold to the pawnshop can be
transmitted to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department via an electronic automated reporting
system, approved by the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. Each of these transactions shall
contain an accurate description of all property pledged, traded or sold to the pawnshop and shall
be made at the time of each transaction, provided that the following information is included:

(1) The date and time of the purchase, pawn or sale of the property.





2) The full name, street address and telephone number of the customer making the
pledge, trade or sale.

3) A description of the customer in terms of sex, race, date of birth, height and
weight, as well as the driver's license number of the customer or some other
identification card which contains a photograph of the customer.

4) A description of the pledged or purchased property by serial, model or other
number, if available, and by any identifying marks (e.g., brand name, color, style,
etc.).

5) The number of the receipt or pawn transaction issued for the property pawned or
bought.

(6) The price paid or the amount loaned.
7 The maturity date of the transaction, if a pawn.

(8) A photograph of the customer and the item pawned or bought which will be taken
with the electronic automated reporting system at the time of the transaction.

) The signature of the customer.

(b) Every pawnshop shall enter each transaction as it occurs into the electronic automated
reporting system or may elect to upload electronically via the internet a batch file of all
transactions for each business day to the administrator of the electronic automated reporting
system immediately at the conclusion of each business day. The administrator of the electronic
automated reporting system will electronically transmit all transactions to the Fayette County
Sheriff’s Department.

(©) In the event that the electronic automated reporting system becomes temporarily or
permanently disabled, pawnshops and pawnbrokers will be notified as soon as possible. In this
event, the pawnbrokers will be required to make records of transactions in paper form. Such
paper forms must include all information as enumerated in paragraph (a) of this Code Section.
Pawnbrokers shall maintain a three-day supply of these paper forms.

(d) Any duly authorized law enforcement officer may, during the ordinary hours of business
or any other reasonable time, inspect any pawnbroker's electronic records at the pawnbroker's
place of business to ensure compliance with this section.

(e) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department shall select and designate the required
automated reporting system. There will be a fee assessed to the pawnshop for each reported
transaction; said fee shall be adopted by the Board of Commissioners and be set in a fee schedule
of the county. This fee will be invoiced to the pawnbroker and collected by the Fayette County
Sheriff’s Department, which may be a third party administrator of the automated reporting
system.





Sec. 13-16.  Violations.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop to violate any of the
provisions of this Article, whether or not such person or employee is the holder of a current valid
permit issued according to the terms of this Article. Further, any person failing to comply with
any provision of this Article or other rules, ordinances and regulations as may be passed by the
Board of Commissioners for conduct of the business of a pawnbroker, shall upon conviction,
have the license to conduct such business revoked.

(b) It shall be unlawful for any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop to:

(1) Make any false statement in an application for any permit provided for in this
Article.

2) Make any false entry in any record book, ledger or form required by the terms of
this Article.

3) Violate any criminal law of this State while acting in the course of business as a
pawnbroker or employee of a pawnbroker.

(©) Any person who violates a provision of this Article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.
Sec. 13-17.  Appeal procedure.

(a) Upon receipt of a timely appeal of an administrative denial, or upon alleged violation of
those items in Section 13-14, the County Administrator or his or her designee shall schedule a
hearing before the Board of Commissioners and provide written notice to the adverse party of the
time, place and date of the scheduled hearing. The County Administrator or his or her designee
shall also state in the written notice the basis for the administrative denial or the violation or
occurrence alleged that forms the basis for the denial or potential suspension or revocation.

After notice of hearing, matters scheduled for hearing may only be continued by agreement of
the County Attorney and the adverse party and/or counsel for the adverse party.

(b) The Board of Commissioners shall have the duty of conducting hearings concerning the
denial, revocation, or suspension of a license. The standard of proof on all issues in the hearing
shall be a preponderance of the evidence and a determination will be made on the basis of the
evidence presented at the hearing.

(©) At the hearing, after presentation of the case against the adverse party, the adverse party
will have an opportunity to present his or her case, to rebut the allegations made against him or
her, and present whatever defenses he or she has. The adverse party shall have the right to be
represented by an attorney, at the expense of the adverse party, and to present evidence and
cross-examine opposing witnesses. An opportunity for rebuttal shall be provided.





(d) At the conclusion of the hearing, the findings and conclusions of the Board of
Commissioners shall be forwarded to the County Administrator or his or her designee and it shall
be the duty of County Administrator or his or her designee to provide written notification via
certified mail to the adverse party of the decision of the Board of Commissioners.

(e) The decision of the Board of Commissioners shall be final unless appealed to the
Superior Court of Fayette County within thirty (30) days of receipt by the adverse party of the

written notification of the decision of the Board of Commissioners.

Sec. 13-18 through 13-49. Reserved.

10





ARTICLE II. DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METALS AND GEMS.
Sec. 13-50.  Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this Section, except where the context clearly indicates a different
meaning:

Dealer in precious metals and gems shall mean a person, as either owner or manager,
whose business involves receiving through purchase or trade precious metals (such as gold,
silver or platinum), jewelry, gems, precious or semiprecious stones, in any form, but not one who
purchases from licensed wholesalers in the normal course of business.

Employee shall mean any person employed or allowed to perform duties, whether or not
such person receives a salary, wages or other compensation or consideration, but not including
the person covered on the license or renewal application.

Goods shall have its normal meaning, however it should be further construed in the
broadest sense allowable and should include all forms of personal property.

Owner shall mean any person, partner or stockholder owning twenty-five (25) percent or
more of a business.

Sec. 13-51.  License required.

Every person doing business in the unincorporated area of Fayette County as a dealer in
precious metals or gems shall, prior to commencing business, make proper application for and
receive the appropriate license.

Sec. 13-52.  Exclusions and exceptions.

Businesses which limit the purchase of used valuables to the acceptance of trade-ins for
credit for new goods or the dispensing of refunds in regard to valuables previously purchased
from the business shall not be regulated or covered under this Article.

Sec. 13-53.  Application for permit.

Applicants for a permit under this Article shall file with the County Administrator or his
or her designee a written, sworn application on a form provided by the County, signed by the
applicant if an individual, by all partners if a partnership or by the president and secretary if a
corporation, and showing:

(a) The name or names of the principals, agents, and employees of the applicant's business
during the time that it will be operating in the County; the local address or addresses of such
person or persons while engaged in such business; the permanent address or addresses of such
person or persons; the capacity in which such person or persons will act (as proprietor, agent,

11





employee or otherwise); the name and address of the person, firm or corporation for whose
account the business will be carried on, if any; and if a corporation, the state of incorporation;

(b) The fingerprints of the principals, agents and employees of the applicant's business, to be
taken by the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department and other evidence which establishes, to the
satisfaction of the County, the good character of such persons to carry on the business;

(©) The applicant's place or places of business in the County, approval of the zoning district
at the place or places, and the length of time during which it is proposed that the business shall
be conducted;

(d) The place or places, other than the permanent place of business of the applicant, where
the applicant within the six (6) months next preceding the date of the application conducted a

similar business, stating the nature thereof and giving the post office and street address of any
building or office in which such business was conducted;

(e) A brief statement of the nature and the character of the advertising done or proposed to be
done in order to attract customers;

) Whether or not the person having the management or supervision of the applicant's
business has been convicted of a crime, misdemeanor or violation of any County ordinance, the
nature of such offense and punishment assessed therefore;

(2) Credentials from the person, firm or corporation for which the applicant proposes to do
business, authorizing the applicant to act as such representative; and

(h) Such other information as to the identity or character of the person or persons having the
management or supervision of the applicant's business or the method or plan of doing such
business as the County may deem proper to fulfill the purpose of this Article in the protection of
the public good.

Sec. 13-54.  Character qualification.

No license or employee permit shall be issued to or renewed for any person who conducts
or is employed in a business in which such owner or employee has, within five (5) years of
issuance or renewal, been convicted of, or pled guilty or nolo contendere to, any felony or
misdemeanor involving theft-related offenses. The licensee shall submit information to the
County regarding the identity of all owners and employees on a continuing basis as changes
occur. This information shall be forwarded to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department for the
purpose of enforcing these character qualifications.

Sec. 13-55.  False statements.
The application shall state thereon that "It is unlawful for any person to make a false

statement on this application. Any false statement made on the application form will void the
application and constitute a violation of this section."

12





Sec. 13-56. Employee permit.

Each person authorized or allowed to conduct any phase of business regulated in this
Article shall be considered an employee and must have an approved employee permit. This
permit must be displayed along with the business license in accordance with license display
requirements.

Sec. 13-57.  License and permit fee.

(a) All businesses licensed under this Article shall pay those fees as designated in a schedule
of fees adopted by the Board of Commissioners.

(b) There shall be no proration or refund of any license fee. The license and permit issued
under this Article shall be a personal privilege and shall not be transferable.

Sec. 13-58.  Records to be kept.

All dealers of precious metals and gems shall, in addition to other records, keep books
wherein shall be entered an accurate description of all property received by or pledged or sold to
them. Such description shall include the brand name of the article, any identifying mark,
number, initial, social security number or name of any person or company, and a statement of the
kind of material of which it is made. In such books there shall be entered also the name of the
person by whom same was delivered, deposited or sold, the name of the person receiving the
item and the time when such transaction occurred. These entries shall be made no later than one
(1) hour after the transaction. Such books and the articles so pledged or sold shall at all times be
subject to inspection and examination by any law enforcement officer of the County or the State.
Any person engaged in any business licensed under this Article who shall fail or refuse to keep
the records as provided in this Section, or who shall make false entries concerning the transaction
or who shall fail or refuse to permit an inspection by any law enforcement officer of the County
or the State of his or her records and of the property pledged with or sold to him or her, shall be
guilty of a violation of this article.

Sec. 13-59.  Daily report to Fayette County Sheriff’s Department.

Every business licensed hereunder shall make a daily report through the approved data
entry program to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department of all property pledged or purchased
during the twenty-four-hour period ending at 10:00 p.m. on the date of the report. Such reports
shall be entered in to the data base and shall show: the name and address of the business; time of
transaction; sequel number of the purchase tickets; amount paid or advanced; full description of
articles, including kind, style, material, color, design, kind and number of stones in jewelry and
all identifying names, marks, numbers, initials, or social security numbers; and a description of
the person selling or trading the item, including name, address, race, weight and height.

Sec. 13-60.  Records maintained for four years.

13





The record of each purchase transaction regulated by this Article shall be maintained for a
period of not less than four (4) years from the date of transaction.

Sec. 13-61.  Special report.

It shall be the duty of each business licensed hereunder to keep an additional record book
in which it shall list the name, address, race, height and age of every person from which the
licensee receives smelted or non-formed precious metals. If the licensee receives or should be
aware he or she is receiving smelted or non-formed precious metal from one (1) person or
household more than twice in any one-year period, he shall immediately report each and every
such occurrence to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department.

Sec. 13-62.  Identification required.

All businesses licensed under this Article shall, when receiving or purchasing goods,
require a proper identification (e.g., driver's license, military I.D. card, state approved 1.D. card
or company employee 1.D. card) containing a picture showing positive identification of the
person who is selling or trading, and such identification shall be verified.

Sec. 13-63.  Fingerprinting required.

All businesses licensed under this Article shall require every person from whom it
accepts goods to place the fingerprint of his or her right index finger (if right index finger is
missing, the next finger in line will be used) on digital systems on the copy of the purchase ticket
which is to be sent to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department.

Sec. 13-64.  Erasers, obliterations, write-overs and type-overs not allowed.

No person licensed under this Article shall erase, obliterate, type over, write over or in
any way cause the original entry on the records required under this Article to become illegible.
All purchase tickets filled out in error shall be sent to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department in
their numbered order along with daily reports and shall have the word "VOID" typed or written
across the front, such entry shall not be used to cause the original entry to be illegible. If an error
is made and the ticket is still to be used, then a single line shall be drawn through the incorrect
entry. This line shall not cause the original entry to be illegible and the correct information entry
shall be made on the next available area.

Sec. 13-65.  Serial numbers.

No business licensed under this Article shall accept any articles which have had the serial
number altered, obliterated or removed from such article or which the person who is making the
business transaction knows should have a serial number upon it, unless such person immediately

notifies the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department.

Sec. 13-66.  Alteration.

14





Any item required to be kept or displayed shall be so kept in its original form as it existed
when first received and its physical characteristics shall not be altered in any manner.

Sec. 13-67.  Purchased articles not to be disposed of for fifteen days after acquisition.

Every business licensed under this Article shall hold, on the premises designated in the
license for doing business, every item required to be listed under this Article for at least fifteen
(15) days before disposing the same by sale, transfer, shipment or otherwise. The provisions of
this section shall not apply to purchases from licensed wholesalers in the normal course of
business.

Sec. 13-68.  Display of goods pledged or purchased.

For a period of fifteen (15) days from the date of purchase or trade, all goods required to
be listed shall be kept in a clearly visible place on the premises, designated in the license for
doing business, and readily available to the general public. Every item required to be displayed
shall have attached to it either a copy of the purchase ticket or the number of the ticket.

Sec. 13-69. Location of businesses.

All businesses licensed under this article shall be located in strict compliance with the
Fayette County Zoning Ordinance and at a location with an identifiable street address, which
shall be stated on the license or renewal application along with other required information. No
business licensed under this Article shall change its address without giving advance notice to the
County and receiving an approval of the change, such approval to be granted if the new location
complies with this Article and the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance. No business licensed
under this Article shall be operated in or from a motel or hotel.

Sec. 13-70.  Hours of operation.

All businesses licensed under this Article shall close their establishment and cease
transacting any business no later than 8:00 p.m. each day and begin their operation and
commence transacting business at no time before 8:00 a.m. each day.

Sec. 13-71. Business transactions conducted outside.

No business transactions by any business licensed under this Article shall be conducted
outside the building designated as the normal place to conduct transactions unless the business
does not have a building. Business transaction means any part of a business including inspection
or appraisal of any goods when it is possible for such goods to be taken inside the building where
transactions normally are made ("possible" being used here in the broadest sense); and no
persons other than those possessing a license or employee permit shall be allowed to conduct any
form of business transactions either inside the establishment or on any part of outside land area
specified on the license.

Sec. 13-72.  Separate business establishment.

15





No business licensed under this Article shall be designed or operated so as to allow
access to the business immediately from any other business without first exiting the other
business into a common or open area to which the public at large has access.

Sec. 13-73.  Dealing with minors.

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed under this Article to receive in purchase or
trade any goods of any character or of any description from any person who has not attained the
age of eighteen (18) years.

Sec. 13-74.  Stolen items.

Every person licensed under this Article shall, immediately upon request, turn over to the
Fayette County Sheriff’s Department every item believed by the Fayette County Sheriff’s
Department to be a stolen item. Such item shall be returned to the licensee only after it has been
determined that such item is not stolen. If it is determined that such item is stolen, it shall be
returned to its lawful owner.

Sec. 13-75.  Inspection.

As a condition of any license covered under this Article, every licensee agrees to allow
any law enforcement officer, pursuant to his or her official duties, to be and remain on or about
his premises without the formality of a warrant, provided the officer does not unduly interfere in
the licensee's operation.

Sec. 13-76.  Penalties.

Any person licensed under this Article who shall engage in any of the following shall be
guilty of a violation of this Code and punished as a misdemeanor, as defined by State law:

(1) Fail to make any entry of any required item in a permanent record book;
2) Make any false entry therein;

3) Falsify, obliterate, record so that information is illegible, destroy or remove from
his or her place of business such permanent record book;

4) Refuse to allow any law enforcement officer of the County or the State to inspect
such permanent record book, or any goods in his or her possession, during the
ordinary hours of business or any reasonable time, or refuse to allow any member
of the general public to inspect goods in his or her possession being held under
purchase or trade (within the fifteen-day purchase period) during ordinary
business hours;

16





5 Fail to maintain a record of each purchase or trade transaction for at least four (4)
years; or

(6) Violate any other provisions of this Article.

Operation of any business under this Article in violation of any provision of this Section shall
constitute a separate offense for each day of operation.

Sec. 13-77. Revocation of license.

Any license issued under this Article shall be subject to suspension or revocation in the
same manner as specified in Article I of this Chapter for pawnshops.

Secs. 13-78 through 13-99. Reserved.

17





ARTICLE III. FLEA MARKET OPERATORS.
Sec. 13-100. Purpose; function.

This Article is adopted in order to promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare
of the inhabitants of Fayette County, Georgia, by regulating the location, design and maintenance
of flea markets.

Sec. 13-101. Definitions.

Unless the context of this Article requires, the following definitions shall be used in the
interpretation and administration of this Article. Words used in the present tense include the
future; the singular number shall include the plural and the plural the singular; and the word
"shall" is mandatory and not optional.

Booth shall mean a designated space or a structure constructed for the purpose of
displaying and selling merchandise within a flea market.

Flea market shall mean any business whereby there is operated a center for shopping
where a vendor or vendors sell merchandise to the public including salvage operations, antique
stores, thrift stores, jewelry stores, coin shops, clothing shops or other businesses involving the
sale of common merchandise.

Sec. 13-102. Exclusions.

All temporary fund-raising events which involve the sale of merchandise by school,
church or nonprofit organizations shall be exempt from the coverage of this Article.

Sec. 13-103. Permit requirement.

It is unlawful for any person to locate a flea market or to construct, alter or extend any
flea market within the limits of unincorporated Fayette County unless a valid permit is issued by
the Code Enforcement Department for Fayette County. Construction, if necessary, must begin
within one hundred eighty days after issuance of the permit.

Sec. 13-104. Applications.
(a) All applications for permits for flea markets shall be submitted to Code Enforcement on a
form prescribed by Code Enforcement. Said application shall include, but not be limited to, the
following:

(1) Name and address of the applicant; if the applicant is a partnership, the names and

addresses of the partners; if the applicant is a corporation, the names and
addresses of the officers and directors;

18





2)

3)
“)
(&)
(6)
(7
®)
€))

Name and address of the owner of the land upon which the flea market is to be
located. In the event that the applicant intends to locate and/or operate a flea
market on leased property, a copy of the lease shall be submitted with the
application. If, however, the property is owned by the applicant, said applicant
shall attach to the application a copy of the deed conveying title unto the
applicant;

Telephone number of the applicant;

A list of references, including banking institutions and character references;
Social security number of the applicant;

Date of birth and identification (i.e., driver's license) of the applicant;
Fingerprints of applicant;

The location and legal description of the flea market; and

A drawing or sketch showing the location of the flea market and design of parking
spaces.

(b) All applications for a license to operate a booth within a flea market shall be submitted to
Code Enforcement on a form prescribed by Code Enforcement. Said application shall include,
but not be limited to, the following:

ey

2)
3)
“)
&)
(6)
)

Sec. 13-105.

Name and address of the applicant; if the applicant is a partnership, the names and
addresses of the partners; if the applicant is a corporation, the names and
addresses of the officers and directors;

Name and address of the flea market within which the booth will be located;
Telephone number of the applicant;

A list of references, including banking institutions and character references;
Social security number of the applicant;

Date of birth and identification (i.e., driver's license) of the applicant; and

Fingerprints of applicant.

License.

(a) Any person, firm, organization or corporation conducting a flea market on property
located within the unincorporated portion of Fayette County shall obtain a license for such flea

19





market and shall pay a yearly license fee adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the Board of
Commissioners.

(b) Any person, firm, organization or corporation operating a booth within a flea market
located within the unincorporated portion of Fayette County shall obtain a license for such booth
and shall pay a yearly license fee adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the Board of
Commissioners.

Sec. 13-106. Inspections.

(a) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department is authorized and directed to make such
inspections as are necessary to determine satisfactory compliance with this Article.

(b) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department shall have the power to enter at reasonable
times upon any private or public property for the purpose of inspecting and investigating
conditions relating to enforcement of this Article.

(©) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department may request inspections by and verifications of
compliance from the Department of Health relating to any of the rules and regulations of the
State and/or local health department. Representatives of the Department of Health shall have the
same powers of entry and inspection as provided for the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department.

Sec. 13-107. Revocation.

(a) Any permit for a flea market may be revoked when it is found to be in violation of this
Article.

(b) Should the Board of Commissioners find that conditions exist which are in violation of
any provision of this Article, it shall give notice to the permittee or owner that unless such
conditions or practices are corrected within thirty (30) days, the permit will be revoked. Notice
shall be served either personally or by certified mail, return receipt requested.

(©) If at the end of the thirty (30) days a further inspection reveals that the conditions or
practices have not been corrected, the Board of Commissioners shall then revoke the permit and
give notice of such suspension in writing to the permittee or owner. Upon notice of revocation,
the permittee or owner shall cease operation and/or construction of the flea market.
Sec. 13-108. Minimum size of booths.

The minimum size of a booth within a flea market shall be ten feet (10”) by ten feet (10”).
Sec. 13-109. Structural requirements.

All flea markets shall be within a permanent structure which meets the minimum

standards of the applicable Fayette County Building Code. Move-in buildings or temporary
structures of any type are prohibited.

20





Sec. 13-110. Exterior of structure.

There shall be no displays permitted on or around the outside of the structure which
houses a flea market.

21





PROPOSED FEE SCHEDULE

PAWNSHOPS
DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METAL AND GEMS
FLEA MARKETS
Pawnshops
Application fee 75.00
Fingerprint 44.25 ea
Regulatory license fee 2000.00
Employee permit fee 30.00

Dealers in precious metals and gems

Application fee 75.00
Fingerprint 44.25 ea
Regulatory license fee 1000.00

Employee permit fee 30.00

Flea Markets

Application fee 75.00
Fingerprint — licensee only 44.25 ea
Regulatory license fee 500.00
Vendor/Booth application & permit 75.00

Short term vendor/booth application & permit 45.00

Transfer fees same as above where applicable.





		Code Enforcement- Pawn Shops ...14-10 Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Shops Ordinance 2014-10 Backup

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Shops Ordinance 2014-10 Backup-1

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Shops Ordinance 2014-10 Backup

		Commissioners- Pawn Shop Backup-1

		Commissioners- Pawn Shop Backup-2



		Code Enforcement- Pawn Shops Ordinance 2014-10 Backup-2










Proclamation | Recognition #1

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Steve Brown
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:
Proclamation of Saturday, May 17, 2014 as "Armed Forces Day in Fayette County."

Background/History/Details:

President Harry Truman led the effort to establish a single holiday for citizens to come together and thank military members for their
patriotic service in support of the United States.

Created on August 31, 1949, Secretary of Defense Louis Johnson announced the creation of Armed Forces Day to replace separate
Army, Navy, Marine Corps and Air Force and Coast Guard Days. The Marine Corps League declined to drop support for Marine Corps
Day but supports Armed Forces Day too (although each branch continues to celebrate its own day.) Armed Forces Day was created
following the unification of the Armed Forces under the Department of Defense.

Armed Forces Day was first observed on May 20, 1950, and was celebrated by parades, open houses, receptions and air shows. The
theme for that day was "Teamed for Defense," which expressed the unification of all military forces under one government department.
The day was designed to expand public understanding of what type of job was performed and the role of the miliary in civilian life.

Armed Forces day was a day for the military to show "state of the art" equipment to Americans. Armed Forces Day is still celebrated
nationwide and is part of Armed Forces Week.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Proclamation of Saturday, May 17, 2014 as "Armed Forces Day in Fayette County."

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #1





		Commissioners- Armed Forces Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Armed Forces Backup

		Armed Forces Backup 1

		Armed Forces Backup 2

		Armed Forces Backup 3










Proclamation /' Recognition #2

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Steve Brown
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:
Recognition of six outgoing Fayette County Development Authority Board Members.

Background/History/Details:

The Fayette County Board of Commissioners is recognizing six outgoing Fayette County Development Authority Board Members for their
dedicated work and achievement for the betterment of Fayette County and its municipalities. Those members include:

1) Randy Hayes
2) Phil Smelley
3) Hollis Harris
4) Joe Morton
5) Mike Brady
6) Allen Phinney

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Recognition of six outgoing Fayette County Development Authority Board Members.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? No

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #2





		Commissioners- Development Authority Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Development Authority Backup








Proclamation | Recognition #3

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Steve Brown
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:
Proclamation to be presented to the Fayette County Farm Bureau recognizing Tuesday, May 13, 2014 as Farmer Appreciation Day.

Background/History/Details:
Minter's Farm, located in the south Fayette community of Inman, will host the 7th Annual Farmer Appreciation Day for the Fayette County
Farm Bureau.

The Farm Bureau strives to be the voice of the agricultural community and works on the local, state and national level to enhance and
strengthen the lives of those who work in the agricultural industry.

The bureau started in Fayette County in 1941 and uses this appreciation day as an opportunity to recognize individuals in this profession
who work hard to make their community a better place for all.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Proclamation to be presented to the Fayette County Farm Bureau recognizing Tuesday, May 13, 2014 as Farmer Appreciation Day.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #3





		Commissioners- Farmers Appreciation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Farmers Appreciation Backup

		Commissioners- Farmers Appreciation Backup

		Farm Backup 1

		Farm Backup 2

		Page 1



		Farm Backup 3



		Commissioners- Farmers Appreciation Backup-1










New Business #11

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Commissioner David Barlow
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:
Presentation from Dr. William Adcox and Dr. Brian K. Nadolne regarding their work in promoting total health.

Background/History/Details:

Commissioner Barlow has asked Dr. William Adcox and Dr. Brian K. Nadolne to make an informational presentation to the Board
concerning total health with an emphasis on reducing obesity.

Dr. William Adcox practices his skill at Family Medicine Specialists, P.C., which was founded in 1997. He seeks to bring into the exam
room a willingness to listen to each patient and individualize their care. Family Medicine Specialists also seeks to advocate for the
patient in an increasingly complex healthcare system with the goal to bring personal and caring approach to healthcare while maintaining
the highest standards of training and education.

Dr. Brian K. Nadolne is a Family Physician in Marietta, Georgia and is the Chair for the Family Medicine Department at Northside
Hospital. He is boad-certifid by the American Board of Family Medicine.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Presentation from Dr. William Adcox and Dr. Brian K. Nadolne regarding their work in promoting total health.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Yes Backup Provided with Request? No

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #11





		Commissioners- Obesity Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Obesity Backup

		SKMBT_C25214042812370

		SKMBT_C25214042812371










Proclamation /' Recognition #4

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Commissioners Presenter(s): Steve Brown
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:
Recognition of Andrew Fleming, a local 7-year-old, who will host a food drive for Fayette Samaritans on Saturday, May 10, 2014.

Background/History/Details:

When six-year old Andrew Fleming's mother asked him what business he wanted to do for the summer last year, he said he wanted to
help people. He started Andrew's Fun & Helpful Community, and he held a drive to collect items for the foster children of Bloom.

This year seven-year-old Andrew wants to help hungry children. He'll do just that by holding a food drive on Saturday, May10, 2014, from
10:00 a.m. - 12 noon, to benefit Fayette Samaritans. And this time, he's got help in the form of a grant from the Sodexo Foundation.

Andrew is asking for the support of the community for this event. It will be held at Fayette Samaritans, 126 Hickory Road in Fayetteville
(at the intersection of New Hope and Hickory Roads.) Please bring a canned good for admission.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Recognition of Andrew Fleming, a local 7-year-old, who will host a food drive for Fayette Samaritans on Saturday, May 10, 2014.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #4





Andrew's Fun & Helpful Community's
"Stamp Out Hunger”
Food Drive

Roughly one in four children in Georgia may not know where
their next meal is coming from.

Join 7-year-old Andrew as he fights childhood
hunger by hosting a food drive to benefit

Fayette Samaritans.

Saturday, May 10, 2014
10:00am—12noon

Fayette Samaritans
126 Hickory Road, Fayetteville, GA
(At the intersection of New Hope and Hickory Roads)

One non-perishable item per person qains you admission!

PRIZE FOR THE PERSON WHO DONATES THE MOST
ITEMS! MUST BE PRESENT TO WIN!

FAYETTE SAMARITANS

Fayette Samaritans provides food and
clothing, along with financial assistance
And more! for selected emergency needs. They
have been serving Fayette County
residents for over 20 years.

Balloon Animals
Games






Youth
Changing
the World

YOUTH EERYICE AMERICA

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
[April 15, 2014]

Seven-Year-Old Hosts His Second Charitable Event -
A Food Drive to Fight Childhood Hunger

Fayetteville, GA, April 15, 2014 — Seven-year-old Andrew Fleming says no child should go to bed hungry. And
thanks to a Sodexo Foundation Youth Grant, he’s going to do his best to see that it doesn’t happen. The first
grader was awarded the grant through YSA (Youth Service America). The grant will support Andrew in leading a
community service project that addresses the issue of childhood hunger.

His organization, Andrew’s Fun & Helpful Community, will host a food drive to “Stamp Out Hunger”, to benefit
Fayette Samaritans. Fayette Samaritans provides food and clothing, along with financial assistance for selected
emergency needs. They have been serving Fayette County residents for over 20 years.

The food drive will be held on Saturday, May 10, 2014, from 10am — 12noon, at Fayette Samaritans, 126 Hickory
Road, Fayetteville; at the intersection of New Hope and Hickory Roads. This family community event will feature a
balloon artist, games, information about fighting hunger in Georgia, and the opportunity to help one less child go
without food.

One non-perishable item per person is required for admission to the Food Drive event, with a prize for the person
who brings the most items (must be present to win).

One-hundred grants were awarded to youth-led projects that aim to reduce childhood hunger in local
communities throughout America. Grantees educate and mobilize their peers around the issue, creating solutions
to end childhood hunger. Sodexo Foundation Youth Grants empower young people as problem-solvers working to
improve the well-being and quality of life for their generation.

Andrew’s Fun & Helpful Community was started by then 6-year-old Andrew last year, because he wanted to help
people. Last year he collected truckloads of items to benefit the foster children of Bloom (formerly Fayette Youth
Protection Homes). His goal this year is to help hungry children.

“As communities are challenged by the reduction in public resources, it makes our vision of a hunger-free America
more difficult to attain,” said Robert A. Stern, chair, Sodexo Foundation. “Each Sodexo Foundation Youth Grantee
is doing their part to tackle an issue that directly affects one in five of their peers. It will be through their actions
and ingenuity that we will one day see an end to childhood hunger in America.”

Hit#

Sodexo in North America

Sodexo, Inc. (www.sodexoUSA.com), leading Quality of Life services company in the U.S., Canada, and Mexico,
delivers On-site Services in Corporate, Education, Health Care, Government, and Remote Site segments, as well as
Benefits and Rewards Services and Personal and Home Services. Sodexo, Inc., headquartered in Gaithersburg, Md.,
funds all administrative costs for the Sodexo Foundation (www.SodexoFoundation.org), an independent charitable
organization that, since its founding in 1999, has made more than 522 million in grants to end childhood hunger in
America. Visit the corporate blog at blogs.sodexousa.com.

Media Contact:
LaKeisha Fleming
Andrew’s Fun & Helpful Community
678-361-7166



http://www.sodexousa.com/

http://www.sodexofoundation.org/



Andrew's Fun & Helpful Community

Contact: LaKeisha Fleming FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
Phone: (678) 361-7166
Email: L_townes@hotmail.com

FAYETTE COUNTY SIX-YEAR-OLD JUST WANTS TO HELP PEOPLE

July 10, 2013 (Fayetteville, GA) “Mommy, | want to collect things for the poor because |
like helping people.”

That was the answer given by 6-year-old Andrew Fleming when his mom asked what type
of business he wanted to have for the summer. He decided to call his business “Andrew’s
Fun & Helpful Community”. Then, he found just the organization to support — Fayette
Youth Protection Homes (FYPH). This dynamic organization helps foster children in
several Georgia counties. Andrew had an opportunity to visit their offices in Fayetteville,
and knew he wanted to help bring smiles to those children’s faces.

Andrew already has the support of a local business, Upscale Pizza. Founded by Chick-fil-
A CEO S. Truett Cathy, Upscale Pizza is very active in the Fayette Community. The
pizzeria will open its doors to host a drive to collect items to donate to the foster children of
FYPH. The wish list of items is attached.

Whether it's through giving children clothes, toys, school supplies, baby gear and hygiene
items, or providing a safe haven with a warm place to sleep, FYPH is there. FYPH opened
the Jim Friday Home in Fayette County in August, 1989, and a second facility, the Asden
Johnson Home located in Brooks, GA, opened in August, 1998. The two were combined
in 2005 to form the Friday-Johnson home in Brooks, GA. Along with Gracie’s Closet,
which is the resource arm of FYPH, approximately 300 foster children are served annually.

Spread the word out about this inspiring event. The drive will take place on Saturday,
August 3, 2013, from 4pm — 8pm, at Upscale Pizza, 180 GA 314, in Fayetteville. Come

have a great meal, bring an item to help the foster children, and support a 6-year-old boy’s
vision of truly having a fun and helpful community.

About Andrew Fleming

Andrew Fleming is a rising First Grader at Landmark Christian School. He loves to read,
and enjoys baseball, basketball, drawing and writing.

it










		Commissioners- Recognition of...eming Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Recognition of Andrew Fleming Backup

		AFAHC Food Drive Poster

		Commissioners- Recognition of Andrew Fleming Backup

		Commissioners- Andrew Fleming Backup 1

		Commissioners- Andrews Fun and Helpful Community Press Release Backup2

		Fleming-3












Proclamation /' Recognition #5

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Steve Brown
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:
Recognition of the J.C. Booth Middle School's Science Olympiad Team's state championship win.

Background/History/Details:

J.C. Booth Middle School's mission is to encourage and support student achievement while striving for excellence. To that end, the
school has competed in the Science Olympiad; a national science competition that has led a revolution in science education. Composed
of a grass roots assembly of science teachers; Science Olympiad is one of the premiere science competitions in the nation, providing
rigorous, standards-based challenges to 7,000 teams in 50 states. Booth Middle School recently won its ninth national championship and
has held the state title twenty-one (21) times out of the thirty (30) times it has been available for the winning.

The J.B. Booth Middle School Science Olympiad team is led by Tammy Pakulski, a science teacher at the J.C. Booth Middle School and
Ms. Mary Wilde, a retired school teacher at J.C. Booth Middle School. The team will travel to University of Central Florida, Orlando,
Florida in May to capture a national win.

Fayette County is proud to support and encourage the parents, teachers, and students of J.C. Booth Middle School in obtaining their
mission to bring home a national championship title.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Recognition of the J.C. Booth Middle School's Science Olympiad Team's state championship win.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?  [Thursday, March 28, 2013
Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? No

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #5










		Commissioners- Science Olympiad Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Science Olympiad Backup








New Business #10

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:
Consideration of a citizen's request to amend the Fayette County Code and Zoning Ordinance concerning Farmers Markets, Flea
Markets and Craft Fairs.

Background/History/Details:
A new business moving into Fayette County operates open markets consisting of a combination of farmers markets, flea markets, craft
fairs, amusement rides and food. Current regulations do not uniformly address or allow a combination these uses.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
No Board action is requested. Staff is seeking direction from the Board on if the Fayette County Code and the Zoning Ordinances,
concerning the requested amendments, should be further reviewed with recommendations.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? No

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #10















		Planning and Zoning- Farm, Fl...arket Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Farm, Flea, Craft Market Backup








New Business #13

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of staff's recommendation to approve a request from Fayetteville First Baptist Church for a curb cut on the access drive to
the Sheriff's Office and to provide an easement to the church for the driveway cut with the church being responsible for maintaining the
driveway cut.

Background/History/Details:

The Fayetteville First Baptist Church is planning to reconfigure their parking lot on Johnson Avenue as as part of the reconfiguration they
are proposing a curb cut on the access drive to the Sheriff's Office. Fayette County Sheriff Barry Babb and his staff do not have any
issues with installing the curb cuts as requested.

If the Board of Commissioners approves this recommendation, staff will work with the church and the City of Fayetteville to coordinate
this project. The Engineering / Public Works Department will review the plans and inspect the construction.

It is also advisable that the County provide an easement to the church for the driveway cut with maintenance of the driveway cut being
the church's responsibility.

Community Development Director Pete Frisina, Public Works Director Phil Mallon and Mr. Bo Mullins will be available to present this item
if needed.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of staff's recommendation to approve a request from Fayetteville First Baptist Church for a curb cut on the access drive to the
Sheriff's Office and to provide an easement to the church for the driveway cut with the church being responsible for maintaining the
driveway cut.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #13





April 22, 2014

Dear Fayette County Board of Commissioners:

Subject: Proposed Right of Way/Access for a new Entrance and Exit to the Fayetteville
First Baptist Church South Parking Lot

We are proposing a new entrance and exit to the southeastern corner of Fayetteville
First Baptist Church’s South Parking Lot and will appreciate your help. We think our
proposal will mitigate a dangerous crossing between the south side of the church facing
Johnson Avenue, East, and the South Parking Lot.

Currently all traffic is entering and exiting the South Parking Lot at only two adjacent
points on the lot’s north side facing Johnson Ave., E. Also, one of the existing
entrance/exit points doubles as a Pedestrian Crossing. Pedestrians in the current cross
walk are exposed to traffic entering and exiting the South Lot, turning into a one-way
northerly facing driveway to a passenger off-loading point under a covered crosswalk,
and to traffic traveling east and westbound on East Johnson Ave. Several have
complained to us about being “almost run over.”

With this proposed modification to the existing South Lot, we feel we can substantially
reduce the hazard at the cross walk by having an option for traffic to leave and enter the
South Lot at the south east corner.

We appreciate your consideration of this request. If further information is required,
please advise how we can help.

Sincerely,

Broughton C. (Bo) Mullins - Chairman — Property and Space Committed

~

>





REMOVE TWO EXISTING DRIVES

AND REPLACE WITH ONE NEW
DRIVE TO BETTER ALIGN
TRAFFIC CROSSING ROAD
< X
PROPOSED DRIVE
W/APRON DESIGN PROPOSED 24' WIDE
SIMILAR TO EX. DRIVES DRIVE WITH 25' R CURB





Floyd Jones

From: Pete Frisina

Sent: Monday, April 28, 2014 9:40 AM

To: Floyd Jones (fjones@fayettecountyga.gov)
Subject: FW: Curb Cut

From: Barry Babb

Sent: Sunday, April 27, 2014 10:40 AM
To: Pete Frisina

Subject: Re: Curb Cut

We don't see any issues. BB

Sent from my iPad

Sheriff Barry H. Babb

Fayette County Sheriff’s Office
155 Johnson Ave.

Fayetteville, GA 30214

(770) 461-6353

(770) 716-4887 Fax

www.fayettesheriff.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: If the word "EXEMPT" or "CONFIDENTIAL" appears in this message line, this message and any
attachments are for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information
that is exempt from public disclosure. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you have
received this message in error please contact the sender (by phone or reply electronic mail) and then destroy all copies
of the original message.

PLEASE NOTE: Georgia has a very broad public records law. Your e-mail communications, including your e-mail address
may be disclosed to the public and media at any time.

On Apr 24, 2014, at 7:31, "Pete Frisina" <pfrisina@fayettecountyga.gov> wrote:

Sheriff,
Any word from the commanders? Thanks

Pete

From: Barry Babb
Sent: Monday, April 21, 2014 11:59 AM





To: Pete Frisina
Subject: RE: Curb Cut

I will bounce off some of my commanders. Should be fine, but | need fresh eyes on this. BB

Sherff Burry # Buth

Fayette County Sheriff’s Office

155 Johnson Ave.

Fayetteville, GA 30214

(770) 461-6353

(770) 716-4887 Fax

www.fayettesheriff.org

<image001.png>

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: If the word "EXEMPT" or "CONFIDENTIAL" appears in this message line, this message
and any attachments are for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged
information that is exempt from public disclosure. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is

prohibited. If you have received this message in error please contact the sender (by phone or reply electronic mail)
and then destroy all copies of the original message.

PLEASE NOTE: Georgia has a very broad public records law. Your e-mail communications, including your e-mail
address may be disclosed to the public and media at any time.

From: Pete Frisina

Sent: Monday, April 21, 2014 9:18 AM

To: Barry Babb (bbabb@fayettecountyga.gov)
Subject: Curb Cut

Sheriff Babb,

The Fayetteville First Baptist Church is seeking permission from the Board of Commissioners to place a
curb cut from their parking lot onto the county driveway serving the Sheriff’'s Office (see attached
aerial). Do you have any issues with this curb cut? The BOC will consider the request on May 8" If you
need any additional information please contact me. Thanks

Peter A. Frisina, AICP

Fayette County Community Development Division
140 Stonewall Ave.

Fayetteville, GA 30214

(ph) 770-305-5160

(fax) 770-305-5258





		Planning and Zoning- First F-...quest Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- First F-ville Baptist Church Driveway Cut Request Backup

		Planning and Zoning- First F-ville Baptist Church Driveway Cut Request Backup

		Microsoft Outlook - Memo Style










Consent Agenda #6

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:

Approval of Resolution 2014-12 adopting the "Fayette County 2013 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2013), including
Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2014-FY2018.)"

Background/History/Details:

As required by the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards, Fayette County in collaboration with
Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey, has prepared the "Fayette County 2013 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2013), including
Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2014-FY2018.)"
Public hearings were held by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on March 11, 2014, and by the three (3) towns in the following
weeks. Each entity approved the report for transmittal to ARC for coordination of state and regional review.

We have received notifications of compliance from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs and the Atlanta Regional Commission
for the 2013 Fire Services Impact Fee Report including amendment to the Capital Improvements Element and Short Term Work Program
of the Comprehensive Plan. The next step is for each local government to adopt this report and for the adopting Resolutions to be
transmitted to ARC. The deadline for this adoption and transmittal of the adopting Resolutions to ARC is June 30, 2014. These actions
are required for each government to re retain its Qualified Local Government status.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of Resolution 2014-12 adopting the "Fayette County 2013 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2013), including
Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2014-FY2018.)"

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |Yes If so, when?  |March 28, 2013

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

Public hearings were held by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on March 11, 2014, and by the three (3) towns in the following
weeks. Each entity approved the report for transmittal to ARC for coordination of state and regional review.




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #6














































































































		Planning and Zoning- Fiscal Y...ption Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Fiscal Year 2013 Impact Fee Adoption Backp








Old Business #8

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: |Old Business

Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of recommendations from the Planning and Zoning Department and the Planning Commission concerning amendments to the
Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Plan Map and the Zoning Ordinance for the area along the State Route 74 South Corridor.

Background/History/Details:

On November 14, 2013, staff came to the Board about a proposal from Ms. Linda Sandwich to rezone a lot containing an existing single
family residence to Office-Institutional for conversion into a medical office on State Route 74 South. The Board sent this request to the
Planning Commission to review for a possible decision on the Future Land Use Plan being amended to allow office in that were
discussed.

County staff and the Planning Commission have recommendations for amendments to the Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Plan
Map, and Zoning Ordinance concerning land use designations of Office on portions of the State Route 74 South Corridor. Those
recommendations are provided in the attached backup material

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Direction from the Board of Commissioners on whether these recommended amendments can move forward to Public Hearing for
approval and adoption.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |Yes If so, when?  [Thursday, November 14, 2013
Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Yes Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Old Business #8






























































































































































































		Planning and Zoning- SR 74 So...tions Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- SR 74 South Land Use Plan Recommendations Backup








New Business #9

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Zane & Audrey Ardis/Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of Zane and Audrey Ardis' request to amend the Agricultural-Residential (A-R) Zoning District to allow weddings and
events as a Conditional Use.

Background/History/Details:

Zane and Audrey Ardis are requesting that the A-R zoning district be amended to allow weddings and events as a Conditional Use (see
attached letter).

The Ardis' would like to start a small business renting out an area that is currently used as an operating hay farm for weddings and
special events a few times a year. They are requesting a conditional use be added for parcels zoned A-R to allow farm weddings and
special events.

Farm weddings are increasingly popular and by their nature need to take place in an agricultural setting. The Ardis' are petitioning for
adding this use to the code rather than rezoning their land as commercial use because they believe rezoning to commercial would be
inappropriate.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

No action is requested of the Board. Staff is seeking the Board's direction for examining the zoning ordinance concerning the requested
amendments.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #9




















		Planning and Zoning- Wedding Allowance Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Wedding Allowance Backup

		Planning & Zoning- A-R wedding-event - Backup 1

		Planning & Zoning- A-R wedding-event - Backup 2










New Business #12

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Public Works Presenter(s): Phil Mallon
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:
Consideration of a request from the Georgia Department of Transportation for an intersection improvement at Harp Road, Seay Road
and State Route 92 and approval for the Chairman to sign the letter of support (GDOT PI 0009972).

Background/History/Details:

On January 9, 2014 the Board of Commissioners provided a letter of support for a safety and operational improvement project at the
intersection of Antioch Road and SR 92. A roundabout was specifically identified as a possible option. During discussion, the Board
suggested that Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) study the intersections of Harp Road, Seay Road and State Route 92 at
the same time to provide a comprehensive assessment of area.

GDOT agrees with this suggestion but requires a letter of support for the Harp / Seay location similar to that provided in January for
Antioch and State Route 92. Although a roundabout is an option for this location as well, staff understands that GDOT s looking at a
variety of alternatives for safety and operational improvements.

A draft letter for Chairman's signature is provided.

Intersection improvements at this location are identified in the 2004 SPLOST Resolution (No. I-11) and the County's 2010
Comprehensive Transportation Plan (Tier 1, No. IR-008).

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of a request from the Georgia Department of Transportation for an intersection improvement at Harp Road, Seay Road and
State Route 92 and approval for the Chairman to sign the letter of support (GDOT PI 0009972).

If this item requires funding, please describe:
No funding is required at this time. If constructed, Fayette County would have to fund power and landscape maintenance costs for the
project.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #12





April 24, 2014 DRAFT

Mr. Michael Presley

District Traffic Engineer

Georgia Department of Transportation, District 3
115 Transportation Boulevard

Thomaston, GA 30286

RE: Fayette County — Project Support for Safety Improvement at SR 92, Seay Road and Harp
Road (GDOT PI1 0009972)

Dear Mr. Presley,

Thank you for identifying the intersection of SR 92, Seay Road and Harp Road as a potential
safety project.

Through this intersection safety program, we understand that, if determined feasible, the
Georgia Department of Transportation would fund all costs associated with project design and
construction (i.e., PE, ROW, UTL and CST phases) and Fayette County would be responsible for
two specific items:

e The full and entire cost of the electric energy used for any lighting installed as part of
the project; and

e Any maintenance costs associated with landscaping of the intersection, post-
construction.

Fayette County supports the consideration of various safety and operational improvements,
including a roundabout, at this location as well as the adjacent intersection of Antioch Road and
SR 92 (GDOT PI1 0009971). We understand the two projects are being evaluated together to
explore comprehensive solutions for the area. Similar to the concerns expressed in previous
correspondence, Fayette County asks that the following types of information be provided for
local consideration and input before final decisions are made.

e What s the project footprint with respect to surrounding buildings and infrastructure;
e What peak-hour delays are expected with and without the improvements; and
e What will happen if SR 92 is widen to four lanes?





4/24/14
Pg.2

| understand the answers to these questions are not currently available but should be
addressed as part of the preliminary engineering process. We look forward to working with you
as this project advances. Please contact Mr. Phil Mallon (770-320-6010) if there is anything
County staff can do to assist with this project.

Sincerely,

Steve Brown
Chairman, Fayette County Board of Commissioners





SIDERATION OF GDOT-
FUNDED INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENT AT STATE
ROUTE 92 AND SEAY

& HARP ROADS

Fayette County Board of Commissioners
April 24, 2014
By: Phil Mallon, Public Works










SR 92 @ Seay & Harp Roads

Distance to Antioch Road: 985’
Distance to Lockwood Road: 1,140’

AADT on SR 92: 16,250 (north)
AADT on SR 92: 7,460 (south)
AADT on Antioch: 3,430

AADT on Harp & Seay: na






		Public Works- GDOT Harp, Seay and SR 92 Agenda Request File

		Public Works- GDOT Harp, Seay and SR 92 Backup

		ltr Presely support for Seay, Harp and 92

		Slides for BOC 4-15-14 - LH

		Consideration of gdot-funded intersection improvement at state route 92 and Seay �& Harp Roads

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3












Consent Agenda #/

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Road Department Presenter(s): Andy Adams
Meeting Date: Thursday, May 8, 2014 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #872 to E.R. Snell Contracting of Tyrone, in an amount not to exceed
$1,643,319.00, for the purchase of asphalt for Fiscal Year 2015.

Background/History/Details:

Each year, the Road Department contracts for the purchase of various mixes of asphalts as needed. The contract is primarily for a
product called Superior Performing Asphalt Pavements (Superpave). Asphalt prices are established based on the Asphalt Cement Price
Index (ACPI). Bidders are asked to quote incremental prices for asphalt over a wide range of ACPI values- from an index value of $201
to $900. Given recent price trends and current worldwide factors that influence prices, the relevant portion of the Index for the upcoming
year is anticipated to be between $501 and $700.

Invitation to Bid #872 was released to obtain a contract for Calendar Year 2013 (FY2014.) Invitations were direct-mailed to 11
contractors and 90 vendors were notified through the electronic Georgia Procurement Registry. Invitations were also extended via the
county's legal organ, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace, and Channel 23. After staff review and
recommendation, on March 14, 2013, the Board awarded a primary contract to E.R. Snell's Tyrone plant and a secondary contract to C.
W. Matthews for asphalt purchases for the calendar year ending December 2013 (FY2014.) On December 12, 2013, the Board approved
a six-month extension of the contract with E.R. Snell to expire on June 30, 2014; making it a fiscal year contract. C.W. Matthews had
declined to extend their contract. The county has been standardizing effective dates for contracts to facilitate budget planning while
simplifying the administrative process. Both companies were offered the opportunity to extend their contracts for six months.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #872 to E.R. Snell Contracting of Tyrone, in an amount not to exceed
$1,643,319.00, for the purchase of asphalt for Fiscal Year 2015.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Funds are budgeted annually in the Road Department's O&M budget in account 10040220-531171, CIP project accounts, or SPLOST
project accounts.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |Yes If so, when?  [Thursday, December 12, 2013
Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  |Yes County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:
The contract with E.R. Snell was approved on March 14, 2013 for the 2013 calendar year. On December 12, 2013, the Board approved
a 12-month extended contract with E.R. Snell, which was ultimately awarded for six months and expires on June 30, 2014 (FY2014.)
This six-month contract extension removed subsequent contracts from a calendar year basis to a fiscal year basis. The current request
is to extend the contract with E.R. Snell for Fiscal Year 2015, which begins July 1, 2014 and ends June 30, 2015 (FY2015.)




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #7





/ f(:zy)(fj'/:ﬂ CWIHERE QUALITY
S

o QUNTY Iz A LIFC=STYLE™

Iy

140 Srosowarl Averue Weost, Sre 121
Faym™TrwILLE, Srancie 5051044

PoaMr: 770 505 SA430

W A LSS LTI R A, B

To: Steve Rapson

From: Ted L. Burgess

Date: April 16, 2014

Subject: Bid #872 Extension 2 — Asphalt

Each year, the Road Department contracts for the purchase of various mixes of asphalt as
needed. The contract is primarily for a product called Superior Performing Asphalt Pavements
(Superpave), which was the result in 1993 of research by the U.S. Strategic Highway Research
Program.

Asphalt prices are established based on the Asphalt Cement Price Index (ACPI) maintained by
the Georgia Department of Transportation, which is updated every month (please see
Attachment #1). Bidders are asked to quote incremental prices for asphalt over a wide range of
ACPI values — from an index value of $201 to $900. Given recent price trends and current
worldwide factors that influence prices, the relevant portion of the Index for the upcoming year is
anticipated to be between $501 and $700 (Attachment #2).

It is recommended that the Board approve the second and final extension of the existing asphalt
contract. The timeline and other background of the contract are as follows:

e ORIGINAL CONTRACT: Invitation to Bid #872 was released to obtain a contract for
Calendar Year 2013. Invitations were direct-mailed to 11 contractors, and 90 vendors
were notified through the electronic Georgia Procurement Registry. Invitations were
extended via the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access
Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23.

Since asphalt cannot be hauled long distances from the plant to the road construction
site, the number of vendors who can realistically compete is limited. Three vendors
submitted bids for asphalt from a total of six plants (Attachment #2). The Board of
Commissioners awarded a primary contract to E.R. Snell’s Tyrone plant, and a
secondary contract to C.W. Matthews’ Tyrone Plant, for asphalt purchases for the
calendar year ending December 31, 2013.





e FIRST EXTENSION: The county has been standardizing the effective dates of as many
contracts as feasible, in order to facilitate budget planning and simplify the administrative
process. Both companies were offered the opportunity to extend their contracts for six
months, to end on June 30, 2014. E.R. Snell agreed to hold their prices firm for that time
period, While C.W. Matthews declined. The county extended E.R. Snell’s contract (the
primary contract) for the six month period.

e PROPOSED SECOND AND FINAL EXTENSION: For the fiscal year beginning July 1,
2014 E.R. Snell has agreed to hold their prices firm for a twelve-month second
extension, which is the last year the contract can be extended. There will be no
secondary contract during that time period. Instead, E.R. Snell has agreed to amend the
contract to state that, if they cannot fill the county’s needs at the Tyrone plant, they will
provide asphalt from the Stockbridge plant at the same contracted price. The proposed
not-to-exceed amount is $1,643,319 for the fiscal year.

The Road Department recommends the contract extension, and | support the recommendation.

Attachments (2)








































		Road- Annual Asphalt Contract Agenda Request File

		Road- Annual Asphalt Contract Backup

		BOC Memo 872 Asphalt Ext 2 (3)-1

		Road- Annual Asphalt Contract Backup

		Purchasing - Annual Contract for Asphalt Backup 1

		Purchasing - Annual Contract for Asphalt Backup 2

		Purchasing - Annual Contract for Asphalt Backup 3











